DY
IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED E R EIFR BR 2 &

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(REREFMKZZERAR)
(Stock code A& ER: 167)

Annual Report 2011 5F£R




OUR VISION

Be a leading global company that consistently provides product innovation and
creates values that enhance people’s quality of life.
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OUR MISSION

e expanding global presence through strengthening distribution network
and leveraging international partnership.

e creating innovative products and services by application of new technology
and unique design with high quality, user-friendliness and cost-
effectiveness.

* investing in Oregon Scientific brand through research & development,
creative marketing and people development.

e driving business excellence to create the highest value to exceed the
expectations of our customers, partners, employees and shareholders.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
A CM

Portlnd, us (7
B (O \Si‘_;,g;_gegttsl

IDT, established in 1977, is a leader in the design, development,
manufacturing, marketing and distribution of lifestyle consumer electronic
products through the application of innovative LCD and microprocessor
technology under three main categories: LCD consumer electronic products;
electronic learning products and telecommunications products.

In the past 34 years, IDT's reputation and corporate image have grown in
international markets. IDT's own brand “Oregon Scientific” has become
widely recognised around the world. Its innovative products have gained a
high degree of recognition and consumer confidence for enhancing their
quality of living.
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Beffjing, China
RELR

Shenzhen, China z
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Hong Kong, China
RE RS

IDT International Limited was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong  BEBIRER R FR—NANN\EREBHALZFHER
Limited in 1988 (Stock Code: 167). Al ET (RGOSR - 167) ©

IDT operates 12 wholly owned marketing and distribution subsidiaries in 10 ER&HAIHREETEERO+ _HTEEREED

countries around the world. Our business presence has been established in 2 &M B RARIEEER - RFNEKBEEHREZRA
over 35 countries through distributors. EThEER  BOHEEEE -
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

SEIBHERE

RESULTS 3

Year ended March 31,

BE=A=+—-HLFE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HKS$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BYEEET BEAET BEAET BERET BERET

Turnover - 1,623.6 1,394.9 1,720.7 2,112.5 2,204.0
(Loss) profit before taxation MRS AT (E1R) A (45.6) (91.7) 385 62.7 (104.6)
Taxation 18 (1.6) (63.3) (7.2) (41.5) (30.6)
(Loss) profit for the year RNETE (FE18) %7 (47.2) (155.0) 31.3 21.2 (135.2)
Attributable to: -1
Owners of the Company RARHEB A (138.2) 24.6 17.5 (151.1)
Non-controlling interests IR (16.8) 6.7 3.7 15.9
(155.0) 31.3 21.2 (135.2)
(Loss) earnings per share Bk (EEB) &F
— Basic and diluted — H A RS GEEEIEEE) (5.53 HK cents)  0.98 HK cents  0.70 HK cents ~ (6.29 HK cents)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at March 31,
R=A=+—8
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BERERT BEEHET BEEEL BEEETL BEEETL
Total assets BEE 1,234.6 1,478.7 1,610.0 1,820.4 1,804.2
Total liabilities BEE (FEX)) (666.2) (611.7) (765.8) (755.9)

621.6 812.5 998.3 1,054.6 1,048.3

Equity attributable to owners R A B A

of the Company JE(E T &= 625.5 7473 793.7 783.5
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR MR 187.0 251.0 260.9 264.8
812.5 998.3 1,054.6 1,048.3
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

naER

SOLICITOR

Bermuda:
Conyers Dill & Pearman

SHARE REGISTRARS

Bermuda:

HSBC Securities Services (Bermuda) Limited
6 Front Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Hong Kong:

Union Registrars Limited

18/F., Fook Lee Commercial Centre
Town Place

33 Lockhart Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

BERMUDA REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Block C, 9th Floor, Kaiser Estate
41 Man Yue Street

Hunghom

Kowloon

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
167

WEBSITES

www.idthk.com
www.oregonscientific.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT

Strategic Financial Relations Limited
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
ANCIEY

IDT INTERNATIONAL
LIMITED
ERERERAF

Bermuda B%iE
LCD Consumer
Electronic Products
WRERET

ETHEBEEM

Electronic
Learning Products
BTHEER

Value Manufacturing
Services (VMS)
EESUERE

Telecommunications
Products
ENES

Sales & Marketing

Oregon Scientific (OS) ﬁ\éjcéf};izc%s‘%
HENBE

IDT Technology Limited
ERRMERAT
Hong Kong &7

IDT Electronic
Products Limited
ERETIX
BRAE
Hong Kong &/

IDT Communication
Technology Limited
BREAREE
BRAF
Hong Kong &8

Oregon Scientific Global
Distribution Limited
B TIRRA R A &

Hong Kong &/
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ETRBES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | present the Group’s annual report for
the year ended March 31, 2011.

RESULTS

The financial year 2011 shown improved financial results over the previous
year, but was nevertheless a challenging one. The global economies continued
highly uncertain and the private consumer markets were still quite weak.
However, the Group's overall financial performance improved over last year.
Revenue increased by 16% to HK$1,623.6 million. Gross profit was HK$532.7
million, which was a growth of 8% over last year, whilst total operating
expenses including other gains and losses, as a result of cost cutting, declined
4% to HK$583.7 million. These positive improvements reduced the net loss
for the Group from that of last year, of HK$138.2 million, to HK$49.6 million
in the current fiscal year. The important factor in these results is to emphasise
that the after-tax operating loss for the year was significantly reduced to
HK$47.2 million from HK$155.0 million last year. There was, however, a non-
recurrent loss on investment of HK$18.9 million, which increased the overall
loss.

Another highlight was that the Group successfully delisted its Singaporean
public listed company, IDT Holdings (Singapore) Limited, and recorded a
surplus of HK$32.5 million which has been booked directly to the balance
sheet total equity. Despite the loss for the year, the Group maintained a
strong balance sheet, healthy liquidity position and an effective zero net debt
position.

On the operational front, the Group has taken on measures to grow revenue
of each business and to improve profit margins. Pricing improvements were
effected to Oregon Scientific products and manufacturing services, to cope
with the rising labor and material costs. Dedicated resources were focused
on high growth markets such as China; restructuring efforts were carried
out in markets to achieve a more effective cost base; sourcing strategy was
optimised to drive lower product costs and balancing in-house manufacturing
and third party out-sourcing (e.g., higher value production was retained in
house to ensure technological competence and protect intellectual property).

With the privatisation of the public subsidiary listed in Singapore, it has
allowed flexibility in undertaking a management and corporate restructuring.
Under this new structure, a combined manufacturing business which is
now referred to as Value Manufacturing Services (“VMS"); and the brand
distribution business of Oregon Scientific (“OS") are formed.

8 IDT International Limited BEE AR A 5
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OUTLOOK

The recovery of the major economies continues to remain uncertain and
we do not expect that consumer confidence and sentiment will significantly
improve in the coming year. In most western major markets, where we
operate, the economies are in deficit; unemployment rates are high; currency
exchange rates are volatile; and retail markets are weak. In China, where
we source all our products, we are affected by rising costs of both labour
and materials. All these factors give pressure to profit margins and make the
predictability of our financial outlook uncertain. Nevertheless, the Group is
continuing to take active measures to change our business model, market-by-
market, as appropriate and to strive for continuous improvement:

o Innovation and development of a full product line in the categories of
“Time and Weather”; “Wellness and Health”; “Sports & Outdoor”; and
for the “Electronic Learning Products” product lines, give strength and
depth to the product offerings.

J Expansion in new markets and new channels, extending and
strengthening the network and distributors, to broaden market channel
coverage and facilitate better market penetration. Expansion into new
markets included the Latin Americas and Middle East.

o Strengthening “Oregon Scientific” as a global lifestyle, smart living
brand mainly through integrated communication strategies. The
established global customer call centres to integrate worldwide service
levels and maintenance of customer databases.

o Streamline our internal operations by implementing a new business
and management organisation structures i.e., Value Manufacturing
Services (VMS) which consolidates the core LCD consumer electronic
products divisions; Telecommunications products division; and the
Electronic Learning Products business. This new management and
operations structure will allow the Group to realise long term savings
and maximising organisational effectiveness on a least cost basis.

o Establish Global core E-commerce expertise to manage Ecommerce
websites; facilitate on-line marketing and web contents to ensure
consistency; maximise and leverage the growth potential of this
developing market channel.

Despite the uncertain global economic outlook, our strategy is to stay focused
and to drive the execution of our business model; to achieve synergies within
our operations; to streamline operating costs and overheads; and to invest in
new higher margin products. With the measures being taken by management,
allied to our continuing strong cash position, we are confident that the Group
will continue to see substantial improvement, and to return to a healthy profit
with a sound financial position.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to express my gratitude to our
shareholders and business associates for the continued support and extend
our appreciation to our management team and staff members for their hard
work and dedication in the past financial year.

ottt

Raymond Chan, JP
Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer

June 29, 2011
Hong Kong

Annual Report 2011 &g

RE

ITEREEAERDATMTIARREER - THEREE
BEELRRSGHAEANE - ﬁf’%“%%ﬁ’]ﬁﬁix

ISR EE FRF - KEX BHEE XKL -
HEEMER - ENHE Fﬁi?ﬁﬁﬁ%uuz%ﬁ%ﬁt%qﬂ
B - ST RWERA LT RARPIER TR - BREAR
”T’i”ﬂ?%ﬁkfﬁ&QﬁﬁﬁE’Jﬁﬁkﬁu SEUATER - A
i ANEBEERBREGER  REZERTELREF
BRERMNSETIS 2 EBHER

. EHEkAE BERRRERAER]  [RERR
REMR] EBHRPIHIER] ZRERRT K
Nepnog [EFHBEMR] R KLIE -

. H—r%?’}‘%?)%lféi%ﬁm%&%ﬁéék F0 N pnog 48 4
DIHFABF ISR BB EBERETTIH2
iﬁ—? c BEBBRREHTISBEN T EMEPR -

. EIBFEAEIERBE N9 [Oregon Scientific| {EA&2
PRAJERF A - IBRAEE MBI R o BRI 2Bk
BERBFL AR —RERREKERBEIEP

REIBEEER - NEABERER

4R VR TRNETEHBEMD I
%Eﬂﬁuu’ﬁu LEFHEBERD I
= %iﬁ‘i

kAR Ep)
NEEME - M ER R EBRB A AL
TRERE quiJ ER AN i = AR ks

. BUYRBEZOETFHEEXEGNEEETHE
Ak - SRR S I R R AR B W

ANBEERZERTHSRENERES -
BE SR RN TR - AT RIS BRI B

12 R B RBAR 2 1T ~ USRS R 15 FARUE - 15
BEERARGEEERUARBE S EMER - TI2E
BREAHRTEE  EAaRMRAHERS  ZMEEDL
ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂiﬁ C PIERR AR R RIFI

B
AABRREFERFSBREEBBH —BLHALE

ZXF MEHEREERNERETNBE 2 RFE
WL N THERF LR

BRIEX » AP #RL

FEREETTRAEE

—T——FA=+NH
BB

IDT International Limited EEEFRER A T 9



OPERATIONS REVIEW

£ e

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The year under review has seen some gradual global economic recovery
which has improved business for consumer products companies. For the year
ended March 31, 2011, the Group recorded a total turnover of HK$1,623.6
million, an increase of 16% when compared to HK$1,394.9 million recorded
last year. The increased turnover was attributable both to a slight recovery in
the retail markets of America and Europe; and to new products and services
that were provided during the year. The revenues from Oregon Scientific
branded products increased modestly by 3% to HK$791.7 million, whilst the
products and services provided by the ODM/OEM business increased by 33%
to HK$831.9 million.

Gross profit was HK$532.7 million compared to HK$491.0 million last
year, a growth of 8%. Implementing the “turn aging inventory into cash
programme”, lowered the prices of certain slow moving items during the
year, which in turn led to a decrease in overall gross margin from 35% to
33%, but reduced the slower moving inventory. A change in sales of both
product offerings and channel mix, also had an impact on the gross profit
margins.

Sales by Product Group
RERERED 2 HER

2011 2010

Other income noticeably decreased by 62% last year, to HK$12.5 million,
mainly due to the discount below asset value from acquisition of an additional
interest in the public listed Singaporean subsidiary that was booked last year,
but which is not allowed to be booked this year on the completion of the
formal de-listing process, despite a profit having been earned, due to the
change in international accounting standards.

Research and development expenditures on new products amounted to

HK$86.6 million, being 5% of the Group's revenue for the year, which was
similar to the 6% spent last year.
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Distribution and selling expenses decreased 7% to HK$266.1 million
compared to HK$286.5 million last year. As a percentage of total Group
turnover, distribution and selling expenses were 16%, a decrease of 5%
compared to last year. The general administrative expenses dropped by
3% to HK$191.8 million as a result of a relentless cost saving programme
implemented throughout the year. Other gains and losses increased 4% to
losses: HK$39.2 million compared to losses: HK$37.8 million last year.

Total operating expenses of the Group, including other gains and losses,
research and development costs, distribution and selling expenses, and
general administrative costs amounted to HK$583.7 million, a reduction of 4%
against HK$606.4 million recorded last year. Total operating expenses, as a
percentage of turnover was therefore 36%, and substantially lower than the
43% recorded last year.

Interest expenses for bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$7.1 million,
down by 24% as compared to HK$9.3 million last year, following lower
interest rates.

Sales by Market
BRhmiBE o 2HER

2011 2010

Taxation amounted to HK$1.6 million compared to HK$63.3 million last year.
The substantial decrease in taxation was mainly due to the one time non-
recurrent tax provision which had to be made last year, in relation to the
offshore profits claims for the years of assessment from 1997/98 to 2008/09,
having been disallowed.

The overall attributable loss for the year was HK$49.6 million. This was a

significant improvement over the attributable loss of HK$138.2 million,
recorded last year.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

£ e

BUSINESS REVIEW

Oregon Scientific

Sales revenues from the Oregon Scientific brand were HK$791.7 million,
being only a modest increase of 3% compared to HK$768.3 million achieved
last year. The sales represented 49% of the Group's total sales. The group
was able to maintain stable sales for Oregon Scientific branded products. The
market environment still has a limiting affect on Oregon Scientific product
distribution.

Time and Weather (T&W) is still the largest product category of Oregon
Scientific and new product introduced in the year generated good income.
Recent global climate changes provide significant market opportunities for
the growth of the group Weather Stations. For the Sports and Outdoor
(S&0) category, there was continued focus on Action Cameras and Heart
Rate Monitors (HRMs). We entered into the untapped female fitness market
with the new range of HRMs that tailored soft comfort wear for women.
The ATCOK camera product is a Full HD, GPS action camera which this year
won the major Consumer Electronics Show in Las Vegas Innovation Product
Award (2011). Among the Electronic Learning Products (ELP), sales of Smart
Globe product group continued to be good. In response to keen market
competition and price erosion, the company is gradually moving away from
children’s laptops and moving towards a new technology platform that we
are confident will drive positive growth in the coming fiscal year. The Wellness
product category proved to be high growth, with significant incremental sales
compared to the previous year. The new Air Sanitizer product that applied
state-of-the-art technology into home use products was accredited by the
international CES Innovation Product Award (2011); IF Product Design Award
(2011); and the Hong Kong Awards for Industries (2011).

”/:?n

The Group will be increasing research and development (R&D) investment in
the coming year to increase the portfolio of products in T&W, S&O, ELP and
Wellness product categories. The company is committed to creating leading-
edge products based on appropriate advanced technologies allied to intuitive
consumer insights. To leverage opportunities to increase market demand
of personal and environmental well-being, the company is also committing
additional resources to pioneer health-related products that should enhance
people’s lives.
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From the market perspective, both US and the European markets are
now showing sales growth. The demand for Oregon Scientific products in
Greater China is improving and the group will invest in China to expand the
geographical market coverage. The group is also expanding its distribution
in other high growth potential markets, other than US and Europe, such as
Turkey, Middle East, Latin America, Russia and Taiwan.

Value Manufacturing Services

LCD Consumer Electronic Products

Sales of this product segment increased by 21% to HK$858.6 million,
accounting for 53% of the Group’s total sales. The increase mainly arose from
the business of ODM/OEM, which rose substantially by 40% to HK$515.5
million, whilst sales of Oregon Scientific brand products were HK$343.1
million, more or less the same figure as last year. The increased sales enabled
the division to record improved operating results. However, LCD products as a
category, is still subject to keen price competition.

To counter such cost pressures, the Group continues to develop and design
higher-end innovative products, and incorporate new technologies. Closely
collaborating with technology partners, continuous investments in R&D are
being made, to improve the competitiveness of all new products. The Group
endeavors to ensure that every product it creates, satisfies the perceived
needs of customers, who typically have active lifestyles, appreciate new
technologies, and are environmentally and health conscious. By leveraging the
resources and capabilities of external subcontractors and partners in product
development, the Group continues to optimise manufacturing and product
development.

Electronic Learning Products

Sales of this segment amounted to HK$361.8 million, a drop of 10%
compared with last year, representing 22% of the Group's total sales. The
decline was mainly attributable to the decreased sales from Oregon Scientific
branded products which saw a reduction in orders from some toy retailers in
the US and Europe.

Annual Report 2011 &g

whmEAESN  ZERBUNTISHEE FAER - AP
# [@ ¥} Oregon Scientific 2 i #) % K IR IETER T » A%

ESRAERTE  EATSEERE - 1S AREL
BRAEMARIERENTSND HEK R RENR
SN PINEHE R T RN REHRKREGE -

BERERS

BREBETRETHEER
ERiHEE A% 2 E¥86BE L EAEHE
BIHEREZ53%  HER LA T EZHRERTREE
o/ REEREERZHEEERNIEEMIO%NEHE
515.5 8 &JT * i Oregon Scientific RIRE 2 HERE A
B33 1B &L BEFKFIRE - HEBMES UL
HFILEXENE  AMRBEBRTERDERNMZE
BHFE -

REHKRAES  RAEBBEERENRRRALTER
MzBSEREAFER AKRBEREERMEHER
BiF HBRENMEIRR LI BNER 25
N REERNBRAEENSRES  REHGRE
O BRIRE  YRABNTARERIRMEEFELE 5
BEARRIARTPMENR - HEABBREHREMRH
BHEZERNEN  NEEBGAECEERINBER
FE o

(@)

EFHBER

HEEABEIISEET  RAFRD10% ' hAL
BB ERE Y 22% - HEREFEHREBRBINZE
FIAZEER I E + E 5 Oregon Scientific,.Z $HE %8
T -

IDT International Limited EEEFRAR A T 13



OPERATIONS REVIEW

£ e

Sales of Oregon Scientific products fell by 6% to HK$284.8 million and ODM/
OEM sales decreased 23% to HK$77.0 million. This was largely attributable
to decline in customer demand affected by significant cost increases in raw
materials and labor.

To look forward, the Group is developing a number of very innovative items
with a completely new technology platform to stimulate growth. The Group
is also working closely with newly appointed distributors, in certain emerging
markets, to increase new business opportunities.

Telecommunication and Other Products
The performance for this division in the year was very good with sales
increased by 43% to HK$403.2 million. The strong sales growth was achieved
by increased demand in the marine radios and the conference telephone
sectors. The Group will continue to invest in product and this should ensure
the sustainability of this product segment.

For the new financial year, as the marine radio and the conference telephone
sectors have fully recovered from the financial crisis, and several new
innovative products will start shipment; it is expected that sales in the Tel
division will maintain the growth momentum. Moreover, the Group will
increase participation in more international exhibitions, to increase sales
penetration and coverage.

WORKING CAPITAL

The inventory balance at March 31, 2011 was HK$295.7 million, increased by
43% compared to the HK$207.3 million at March 31, 2010. The considerable
increase in stock level is seasonal and reflects the increased demand of the
products in the high season sales, and throughout the financial year. And
also the absolute figures achieved last year were at an historic low level which
cannot readily be maintained, in a growing business. The inventory turnover
increased from 84 days recorded last year, to 99 days this year.

Trade debtor balances at March 31, 2011 was HK$192.2 million, down by
13% compared to the HK$219.9 million shown at March 31, 2010 and this
reflects improved collection capability for the year. Trade debtor’s turnover
improved to 43 days compared to that of last year of 58 days.

LIQUIDITY AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT

At March 31, 2011, the cash and bank balances of the Group, including the
short term bank deposits, were HK$415.1 million (March 31, 2010: HK$682.6
million). The reduction is largely as a result of the privatisation process for the
Singapore listed company explained below. And whereas the group figure
shown last year was a consolidated one which means that it did include funds
in Singapore that were not 100% owned by the shareholders of the company.
The figures shown at March 31, 2011 are those which now are entirely at the
disposal of the company, with no non-controlling interests therein.
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During the year ended March 31, 2011, the Group generated its funds mainly
from operating activities and bank borrowings. The net cash position (cash
and bank balances less total borrowings and bills payables) at March 31,
2011 amounted to HK$103.3 million (March 31, 2010: HK$301.3 million).
The reduction of HK$198.0 million is mainly due to the delisting of our
Singaporean listed company project — where approximately HK$156.7 million
was used to acquire the non-controlling interests of that company. The Group
has throughout the year maintained sufficient financial resources to meet all
working capital requirements and finances of its commitments and still has a
surplus of net cash over all bank borrowings.

The Group's exposure to foreign currency stems mainly from the net cash
flow and net working capital translation achieved in its overseas subsidiaries.
Hedging of foreign currency exposures is arranged through a combination of
natural hedges and forward forex contracts. At March 31, 2011, there were
forward contracts in place to hedge against possible exchange movements of
future net cash flows. Speculative currency transactions are strictly prohibited.
Management of currency risk is the responsibility of the Group’s headquarters
in Hong Kong.

DEBTS AND GEARING RATIO

The total borrowings of the Group at March 31, 2011 reduced to HK$311.8
million (March 31, 2010: HK$381.3 million) which consisted of the short
term bank loan of HK$311.7 million and bills payable of HK$0.1 million. The
borrowings are mainly denominated in HK dollars and on a floating rates
bases.

The debts incurred by the Group are mainly used for general corporate
purposes, including capital or long term expenditures and working capital
requirements.

Then gearing ratio (total borrowings over total equity) at March 31, 2011 and
March 31, 2010 were approximately 50% and 47 % respectively.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

At March 31, 2011, there were no finance charges on the Group's assets.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment for the year ended
March 31, 2011 amounted to HK$28.1 million (2010: HK$15.9 million) which
was all used for business operations and product development. Source of
funds were financed by internal resources and borrowings.
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There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and associated
companies in the course of the year ended March 31, 2011 except the
acquisition of the total number of 38,875,750 shares of IDT Holdings
(Singapore) Limited at Singapore dollars (“S$") 0.54 for each share, in cash, at
an aggregate maximum consideration of $$20,992,905 (HK$156.7 million), in
the second half of the year.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended March 31, 2011.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At March 31, 2011, the Group had no contingent liabilities (2010: nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at March 31, 2011, the Group had about 3,443 employees. The Group
fully recognises the importance of its employees who contribute significantly
to its success and continues to maintain and upgrade the capabilities of its
workforce by providing them with adequate and regular training.

The Group’s remuneration policy is to provide compensation packages at
market rates which reward individual’s performance and attract, retain
and motivate high quality employees. The compensation packages offered
by the Group are comparable with other organisations of similar size and
business nature and are reviewed annually. The components of employee’s
remuneration package consist of base salary, double pay, fringe benefits
including pension scheme, medical insurance, life and personal accident
insurance, employee compensation and business travel insurance as well as
incentives like discretionary cash bonus and the opportunities to participate in
the Group's share option schemes.

Details of the schemes and the number of options granted to the Group’s
employees are set out in note 27 to the financial statements from page 106
to page 110. Details of pension schemes operated by the Group are set out
in the note 32 to the financial statements on page 120. In Xixiang, Shenzhen,
China where the Xixiang Facilities are located, staff welfare rates are set with
reference to the prevailing labour laws in China. Accommodation and leisure
facilities are also provided to local staff at Xixiang Facilities.
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The Group’s remuneration philosophy for executive directors and senior
executives is based upon creating a strong link between performance and
reward in accordance with the following principles:

1. Fixed salaries and benefits are set at median-market level against
comparator groups of companies selected on the basis of similar size
and business nature and benchmarked with the prevailing market
conditions; and

2. Performance-related bonus is linked to the achievement of pre-defined
performance targets including financial targets, performance index and
pre-agreed management objectives.

The emolument of the directors is recommended by the remuneration
committee with reference to companies of comparable business type or scale,
and the nature and quantity of work at both Board and Board Committee
levels (including frequency of meetings and nature of agenda items) in order
to compensate directors reasonably for their time and efforts spent. The
directors’ emolument is approved by the Board pursuant to the mandate
granted by the shareholders at annual general meetings. It comprises of five
components, namely base salary, benefits, annual performance-related bonus,
share options and pension scheme. In addition, each director is paid a basic
director’s fee for his/her service as director of the Company. Additional fees
are paid to a director for appointment as a member of a particular committee.
Non-executive directors receive no base pay, benefits, bonus or pension
except director’'s fee and reimbursement for expenses incurred in connection
with their directorship of the Company. No individual director is allowed to
participate in the procedures for deciding his/her individual remuneration
package. Full details of the remuneration of and fees paid to the directors
in the year ended March 31, 2011 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements from page 85 to page 86. All directors are entitled to participate
in the share option schemes of the Company. Details of the schemes and the
number of options granted to directors of the Company are set out in note 27
to the financial statements from page 106 to page 110.

Raymond Chan, JP
Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer

June 29, 2011
Hong Kong
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EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

ETHREMSER

LEADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT

IDT believes strong leadership enhances employee performance and drives
business results and growth. Developing leaders through comprehensive
skill training and development programs to strengthen employees’ core
competences is one of the priorities of the Group. Participants met regularly to
share their work experiences and management insights. Team engagement,
value chain effectiveness & effective coaching skills were emphasized to equip
their leadership.

STAFF TRAINING

To enhance staff knowledge & understanding of their disciplines, a series of
training courses and seminars have been conducted. Training sponsorship
has also been granted in areas such as Innovation & Creativity, Compliance &
Quality & Personal Development.
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MULTIMEDIA & E-LEARNING

To cope with the increasing learning needs & optimizing the training
resources, we develop our Web Academy, an online self-learning platform to
enable Just-In-Time learning capability. We also published a newsletter named
“Knowledge Express” on a bi-weekly basis. Market & technology updates
were sent to all staffs via our intranet.

WELLNESS PROGRAMS FOR EMPLOYEES

The Lunch and Learn Programs were held regularly to promote Work-Life
Balance. Experts of various disciplines were invited to deliver sessions in
various interests, such as book appreciation & magic show. Staff members
were also sponsored to take part in runs and hikes to maintain their health
& fitness level. Social, recreational & charitable programs such as New Hire
Lunch Gathering, Annual Outing, Christmas Party and Annual Dinner, Charity
Lunch Party were held to enhance internal communication and affirm a sense
of belonging.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

As with previous years, the Group has actively promoted awareness of social
responsibilities to our employees.

The Group generously donated our products to organizations such as Youth
Outreach & St James Settlement to support their charitable programs. We
also supported a wide range of fund-raising programs such as the Dragon
Foundation Golf Tournament at Mission Hills Golf Club, Sowers Action
Challenging 12 Hours 2010, the 2011 Community Chest BOCHK Charity Golf
Day, Heifer-Credit Agricole CIB Race to Feed 2010 and donations for Qinghai
Earthquake victims organized by the Red Cross.
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CARE FOR THE COMMUNITY

Our volunteer team, formed by our employees and managers, partnered
with Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council paid regular home
visits, organized birthday parties & outings for elderly members who live
alone, suffer from chronic diseases or physically handicapped. This year, we
accumulated over 1,600 hours of volunteer work, serving over 300 people
in need. Since 2005, the Group has been bestowed the award of “Caring
Company Logo” by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of
our care for the community.
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EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

ETHREMESER

EDUCATION SPONSORSHIP

To promote the awareness of design value and to enhance the expertise of
the design professionals and business students, we also offer sponsorships
to support student projects, contests, and leadership programs. The “PolyU
Innovation & Entrepreneurship Global Student Challenge” and “HK 200
Leadership Project” organized by Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
are two of the key annual sponsorship programs. These programs aim
at encouraging the youths to contribute their learning to the society and
equipping them with the right attitude, knowledge and leadership skills to
learn the working environment in the real business world.
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This year, the Group expanded education sponsorship from Hong Kong to
mainland China. We have sponsored 18 high school students, living in remote
areas in Liannan, Guangdong of China, to further their studies. The Group
not only has offered donation but also organized a CSR volunteer team of 20
people to visit their homes.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESENSREEAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

RAYMOND CHAN, JpP

Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer, a member of the Executive
Committee of the Board and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company, aged 62. Dr. Chan founded the IDT business in 1977. He leads
the management in setting the Group’s mission and objectives, develops and
formulates business strategies. He is also the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of IDT Holdings (Singapore) Limited (“IDT Singapore”), a Singapore
subsidiary previously listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited and was delisted on February 21, 2011. Dr. Chan started out as
an electronic engineer and has over 40 years’ experience in the consumer
electronics industry. Before establishing the IDT business, he worked for multi-
national semi-conductor companies in the US and Hong Kong. Dr. Chan has
been conferred for a degree of Doctor in Business Administration, honoris
causa by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003. Dr. Chan
is a member of the Advisory Committee on School of Design of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a member of the CreateSmart Initiative (CSI)
Vetting Committee under the Commerce and Economic Development, the
Honorary President of The Toys Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and
Life Patron of The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.
Dr. Chan is the husband of Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley.

CHAN PAU SHIU YENG, SHIRLEY

Executive Director, a member of the Executive Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company, aged 62. Mrs. Chan is the wife of Dr. Raymond
Chan and as a co-founder of the Group, she has been involved in developing
the IDT business since 1977. Mrs. Chan’s main responsibilities are to advise
the business and marketing activities, legal affairs and administrative functions
of the Group. She is also an Executive Director of IDT Singapore. Mrs. Chan
holds a MBA degree from the University of Hull, UK, a Master of Arts degree
in Communication Management from the University of South Australia, and a
Master of Arts degree in English for Professional Purposes from the University
of Central Lancashire, UK.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESENESREEAE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LO KAI YIU, ANTHONY

Independent Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee,
aged 62. Mr. Lo was appointed in July 1990. Mr. Lo is qualified as a
chartered accountant with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario,
Canada and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lo has over 28 years of experience in banking, finance and
investments. He worked for a number of well known financial institutions
including serving as a managing director of Indosuez Asia Limited, Suez Asia
Investment Management Ltd., HG Asia Limited, ABN Amro Asia Limited
and PrimeCredit Limited. He has the relevant experience in internal controls
and in preparing and auditing comparable financial statements as well as
experience in reviewing or analysing audited financial statements of public
companies. Mr. Lo is currently the Chairman of Shanghai Century Capital Ltd.
and a non-executive director of Bosera Asset Management (International)
Co., Limited. He is an independent non-executive director and chairman of
the audit committee of Mecox Lane Limited, a listed company on Nasdag.
Mr. Lo is also an independent non-executive director and members of the
audit, nomination and valuation committees of The Taiwan Fund Inc., which
is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. He also serves as an independent
non-executive director, audit committee chairman and member of the
compensation committee of Tristate Holdings Limited; an independent non-
executive director, audit committee chairman and member of the nomination
committee of Playmates Holdings Limited and an independent non-executive
director and member of the audit committee of Convenience Retail Asia
Limited and Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited, all are Hong Kong publicly listed
companies.

KAO YING LUN

Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, aged 58. Mr. Kao was
appointed in June 1997. He has over 23 years of business and professional
experience in investment banking and corporate finance. Mr. Kao holds an
Honours Business Administration Degree from Richard Ivey School of Business,
The University of Western Ontario and is a Chartered Accountant qualified in
Canada.

JACK SCHMUCKLI

Independent Non-Executive Director, Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee, aged
71. Mr. Schmuckli was appointed in May 1999. He has over 36 years of
professional executive product marketing experience in the photographic and
electronics industries. He had been the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of Sony Europe GmbH for 14 years and had also been an executive member
of the board of Sony Corporation, Tokyo. Mr. Schmuckli now holds several
non-executive board memberships, mainly in Switzerland.
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KENICHI OHMAE

Independent Non-Executive Director, aged 68. Dr. Ohmae was appointed
in August 2001. He is a world renowned management consultant and was
selected as one of the five management gurus in the world by The Economist
in 1994. Dr. Ohmae received his Ph.D. in nuclear engineering from the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology and an honorary doctorate from
Notre Dame University. He is an expert in formulating creative strategies and
developing organizational concepts for both the private and public sectors.
He is the founder and President and Chief Executive Officer of Business
Breakthrough, Inc. and before that, had been a partner of McKinsey &
Company, Inc., an international management consulting firm, for 23 years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WONG RAUDRES LOURDES

Group Chief Financial Officer, aged 48. Ms. Wong joined the Group in
October 2009. She is responsible for all corporate finance functions and
corporate development matters of the Group and to ensure achievement of
corporate objectives. Ms. Wong has a wealth of over 22 years of international
experience in corporate finance, business management, and mergers and
acquisitions. Prior to joining the Group, she was the Chief Financial Officer
of the Asia Pacific Division of ASSA ABLOY Group. She had held different
senior finance and strategic business planning positions in Nike International
Ltd and Level 3 Communications. She had also worked for Nortel Group in its
various offices in Canada, and in cities including Tokyo, Beijing and Shenzhen.
Ms. Wong holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce and a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from McMaster University of Hamilton, Canada. She
is a Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada.

LEONG MUN HOONG, LEON

President — Value Manufacturing Services division (VMS division),
aged 50. Mr. Leong joined the Group in June 1999. He has profit
and loss responsibility for the VMS division which offers best-in-class
product development and manufacturing services for Sports, Fitness
and Healthcare, Telecommunications, Energy Monitoring and Management,
Environmental Monitoring and other OEM/ODM business. His role
encompasses the entire business strategic planning and execution to achieve
growth targets in turnover and profitability that will include planning and
identification of new growth opportunities and execution of strategies
and actions in business development, new product development and
innovation, research and development and new technologies, new product
planning, project management and quality manufacturing. Mr. Leong holds
a Bachelor of Science degree in Industrial Engineering obtained from the
University of Tennessee, USA and a Master degree in Business Administration
from the University of Warwick, UK. Prior to joining the Group, he was the
Managing Director of Strombecker (HK) Ltd.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ESERES

The directors are pleased to present to the shareholders their annual report
and audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its principal subsidiaries
are engaged in the investment holdings, design, development, manufacture,
sales and marketing of various consumer electronic products. Details of the
principal activities of the Group’s subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2011 are set out in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 49 and further
analysis is given in the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend for the year ended March 31, 2011 was paid (2010: Nil)
to the shareholders of the Company.

The directors of the Company have resolved not to recommend the payment
of a final dividend to the shareholders of the Company (2010: Nil).

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 4.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 52.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$28.1 million (2010: HK$15.9 million) on the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment for the purpose of business expansion.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

24 IDT International Limited BEEEER LT

EEEMANSRELEHEZE-_T——F=-A=1+—H
IEBRFE 2 REE MMEBZY SRR -

FEEK

RAR T —FEREER AR - EETEBMBARNERE
TR RRET BT RELREEREELZES FHE
Efe AEENBAREEEB Z FBIANMIBHREN
3418 o

%Bﬁ\n
HER BRI B IRRMTESH

P

SN

E
AEEBE-T——F= A=+ AILFEZEERR
LB ZIRAREMER - — SO BIBNHEN 2t
BREME -

RE
FARLBENBE-T——F=A=+—BLFEY
PR FARARR(ZT—TF @) -

ARBEEGRATEZRERPRETARRRE(Z
T—ZTF M)

EEBEHME
AEEBREAEMBRFEsZEREERBBERZEHN
F48E -

% 7K
RABRARFERNRE 2 &
2618 ©

f#E

R B ARRRAEE P2 2
S EZiRAMRBEE -

FEER M BRI ES

FEDRENE

M - BRERRE

AEERAFEARESBTBEME BBEREEZ
THAEHELBE 281 BEL(ZT—FF  B¥1598H

e —

8IT) o

AEERANFEANDE KBS RBHEZE
IR FESE 1218 -

BNl

Annual Report 2011 %R



DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
HK$415,400 (2010: HK$185,400).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers in the year accounted for approximately 19% of the Group's
purchases and the purchases attributable to the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 5% of the Group's purchases.

The aggregate percentage of turnover attributable to the Group's five
largest customers was approximately 23% of the Group’s turnover and the
percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer was
approximately 7% of the Group's turnover for the year.

None of the directors, their associates or shareholders, who to the knowledge
of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital, had any
interest in any of the five largest customers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive:

Raymond Chan, JP, Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley

Barry John Buttifant (appointed on July 12, 2010)

Independent Non-Executive:
Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony

Kao Ying Lun

Jack Schmuckli

Kenichi Ohmae

In accordance with Bye-law 97 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr. Kao Ying
Lun and Mr. Jack Schmuckli will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. The retiring directors, being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).The Company considered all the
independent non-executive directors as independent.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ESERES

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
November 10, 2010 which can be terminated by either party giving a three
month’s written notice to the other party. Under such service contract,
each of the independent non-executive directors is subject to retirement
by rotation at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-Laws, and is entitled to a fee of HK$200,000 per
annum subject to such adjustments as the Board of the Company considers
appropriate and the approval of the shareholders at annual general meeting
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company offering for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at March 31, 2011, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under the provisions of the SFO) or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Model Code") were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

BEEoBSFEE@®

No. of shares held l':l:(;:l:;::;

Pt E % of the  shares held

Personal Family Corporate issued under equity

Name interests interests interests Total capital derivatives

PYES

PTETHR

HERT FHHEZMEH

s BAES RikER DEIER By REEIHL RHEE

(note 3)

(P5E3)

Raymond Chan PR 1E X 105,505,102 314,482,303 1,010,730,270 1,430,717,675 57.18% 3,120,000
(note 1) (note 2)
(M) (Ff5E2)

Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, FREOE & 109,291,431 1,116,235,372 205,190,872 1,430,717,675 57.18% 2,080,000
Shirley (note 1) (note 2)
(PEE1) (PzE2)

Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony EER 1,711,779 — — 1,711,779 0.07% 4,040,000

Kao Ying Lun = — — — — — 4,040,000

Jack Schmuckli Jack Schmuckli 1,667,200 — — 1,667,200 0.07% 4,040,000

Kenichi Ohmae KBIF— — — — — — 4,040,000

All interests disclosed above represent long positions in the shares/underlying
shares of the Company.

Notes:

(1) Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley is the wife of Dr. Raymond Chan. The personal

and corporate interests of Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley are disclosed as the
family interests of Dr. Raymond Chan. The personal and corporate interests of Dr.
Raymond Chan are disclosed as the family interests of Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng,
Shirley.

(2) 1,010,730,270 ordinary shares are held by Integrated Display Technology Limited,

a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which is wholly owned
by Dr. Raymond Chan. 205,190,872 ordinary shares are held by Raymax Time
Company Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which is
wholly owned by Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley.

@3)

These represent the interests in underlying shares in respect of the share options
granted by the Company, the details of which are set out in the sub-section
entitled “Share Option Scheme” below.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executives of the
Company or any of their associates had, as at March 31, 2011, any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under the provisions
of the SFO) or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ESERES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME B AESTE
Details of the share option scheme adopted by the Company on August 28, ARATR-ZZEE_EN\A-+N\BEK EBRESE

2002 (2002 IDT International Option Scheme”) are set out in note 27 to the ([ ZZZE - FE BB ERETE]) Z B HP I ER
financial statements. RMITESE 2778 -

Particulars of the outstanding options under the 2002 IDT International #HZE-Z——F=ZA=+—HUIHKREFE B=RE_
Option Scheme held by the directors during the financial year ended March =& —FE g BFERET B E 2 BARE ZFBOT ¢
31, 2011 were as follows:

Number of share options
BREZA
Lapsed/
Granted Exercised cancelled
Exercise price  Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Directors Date of grant Exercisable period pershare  at4.1.2010 the year the year theyear at3.31.2011
R=%-%F R=B--F
A-B ¥R =R=t-H
= BREAH TREE  BROEE MATE  ERERE  FREAE  AWEH HRATE
(M/D/Y) (M/D/Y) (HKS)
(B/B/%) (B/B/%) B

Raymond Chan Bz 1130.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0529 3,120,000 — — — 3,120,000
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley ~ R&#1E & 11.30.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 2,080,000 — — — 2,080,000
Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony EEE 11.30.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 1,040,000 — — — 1,040,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 — 1,500,000 — — 1,500,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 — 1,500,000 — — 1,500,000
Kao Ying Lun SRR 11.30.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 1,040,000 — — — 1,040,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 — 1,500,000 — — 1,500,000
Jack Schmuckli Jack Schmuckli 11.30.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0529 1,040,000 — — — 1,040,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 — 1,500,000 — — 1,500,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 — 1,500,000 — — 1,500,000
Kenichi Ohmae RBIH— 11.30.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 1,040,000 — — — 1,040,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 — 1,500,000 — — 1,500,000

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR EEREROIEER 2EFR

DEBENTURES

Details of share options granted to or exercised by the directors of the RAFFEANARRFERER N TAITHE 2 BIRERN Z
Company during the year and their outstanding balances at March 31, 2011 Z——F=A=+—HRKRTEZBREFBEHN X
are set out in the sub-section entitled “Share Option Scheme” above and also & /& [FERERTEI] 2 9 &0 R B HRR Mz £ 27 1A -
in note 27 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or B FXFI#EESN - RAFEEARNAR A S ETMANE L
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of ~ FIBEEL AL HE - FAREEFHE MR 2 FfBsk
the Company or their respective spouse or children under the age of 18 to T /\BRLA T2 FRAI#EE E AR R Al sk (E ] Efth)x A E 88
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,  Z W& EEEMESFN = -

the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at March 31, 2011, the following persons (other than the directors or the
chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company were as follows:

FERR

REZZ——F=ZA=+—0 RARRAEFHITHAEH
Sh o THIALTRARB Z Bty RABEBRM T - BHEAR
RIREES R BERDIE 336 GETHF 2 B LM
BRBMEARR 2 ERIOABT

No. of % of the issued

Name shares held share capital
HERITRE

=L FERGEE Aotk
Integrated Display Technology Limited (note 1) (FffzE 1) 1,010,730,270 40.39%
Raymax Time Company Limited (note 2) (ffiz£2) 205,190,872 8.20%

All interests disclosed above represent long positions in the shares of the
Company.

Notes:

(1) Integrated Display Technology Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, is wholly owned by Dr. Raymond Chan. Such corporate interests
are also disclosed in the sub-section entitled “Directors’ Interests in Securities”
above.

(2) Raymax Time Company Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, is wholly owned by Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley. Such corporate
interests are also disclosed in the sub-section entitled “Directors’ Interests in
Securities” above.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by any
person (other than the directors or chief executives of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at March 31, 2011 which were required to be disclosed to the
Company under Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

Save for the share options set out in the sub-section entitled “Share Option
Scheme” above and also in note 27 to the financial statements, the Company
had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
at March 31, 2011.

Other than the issue and exercise of share options pursuant to the share
option scheme of the Company as explained above, there was no issue or
exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights of the
Company during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement schemes are set out in note 32 to the
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ESERES

REMUNERATION POLICY

Details of the Group’s remuneration policy are set out in the section of
"Qperations Review"” from page 10 to page 17 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by officers of the Group (the “Code”) on terms no less exacting than the
Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of all directors, they have confirmed that they fully complied
with the required standards set out in both the Model Code and the Code
throughout the year ended March 31, 2011.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate governance.
The Group’s corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report from page 31 to page 46 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-Laws
or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date of this report,
the Company has maintained sufficient public float throughout the year
ended March 31, 2011 as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Raymond Chan, JP
Chairman & Group
Chief Executive Officer

Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley
Executive Director

June 29, 2011
Hong Kong
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The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate governance
to safeguard the interests of all shareholders and to enhance corporate value
and accountability. Throughout the year ended March 31, 2011, the Group
has applied the principles and complied with most of the code provisions
and recommended best practices prescribed in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). This report describes its corporate
governance practices, explains the applications of the principles of the CG
Code and deviation during the year under review.

1

1.1
1.1.1

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board

The Board is responsible to the shareholders for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company and its businesses by directing and supervising
the Company'’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.
The principle functions of the Board are to:

° establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

° determine the broad policies, strategic plans and performance
objectives of the Group;

. monitor management performance;

° approve financial plans and annual budgets, major funding
proposals, key funding and investment proposals;

° oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal
controls, risk management, financial reporting and compliance;

° approve the nominations of directors and appointment of key
personnel; and

° assume responsibility for corporate governance.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to executive
directors and senior management, while reserving certain key matters
for its approval. Decisions of the Board are communicated to the
management through executive directors who have attended at
Board meetings and circulation of minutes of Board meetings to the
management.
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1.1.4 The Board has adopted a set of guidelines on matters that requires 114 EE Y AREM ECETHA—FRH4ED

its approval to achieve a clear division of the responsibilities of the URARATEESSRERE S - AEESS
Board and the management. Matters requiring the Board's approval BEZEEEPOEMBERRBUESEE X
include, among others, all matters of strategic importance, corporate BB ORI LR EREST - NEPEE - EbR
governance practices, legal and regulatory compliance, internal control B ERE ZERESTEE ATEWKIR
and risk management, corporate strategy, operating and capital EH BEENEERY FTEXHRIREEARAR
budgets, statutory financial reports, changes in Board members, major EENSREBASZHMBR  EEREARR
transactions and investment commitments and remuneration policy Y EVERG R RBRAER 2 ERET
of directors and senior management, financial authorization and B BRI ERTE - RAAESEEGSH
approval limits for operating and capital expenditure, the procurement k2 FE (BMETRG  REREREMS A
of goods and services, and the acquisition and disposal of investments. TRER) EEgHERBRE THIERE 2 EE
Apart from matters that specifically require the Board's approval — FER THRRFEAT 2 EZENREENTHRITEZE
such as the issue of shares, dividend distributions and other returns g DAINREBROR o

to shareholders — the Board approves transactions exceeding certain
threshold limit, while delegating authority for transactions below those
limits to Executive Committee so as to facilitate operational efficiency.

1.1.5 The Board meets regularly. In addition to at least 4 scheduled meetings 1.15 EE&@FHETeE - B T HERINEATHE
each year, it meets as and when warranted by particular circumstances. B2 BEGURNBEAFTERAHEE - AL
Meetings via telephone or video-conference are permitted under the AEBMAMESEBERIRETARTEE -
Bye-Laws of the Company. A record of the number of Board meetings REBE-_Z——F=ZA=+—HULUBRFE &
and Board Committees meetings held during the financial year ended EHEEEGNZERLERBZLHEHINE
March 31, 2011 is set out in the table on page 42. DEBEEX -

1.1.6 To maximize the effectiveness of the Board and to encourage active 1.16 ARSEZESWENALEHEESKEEHLH

participation and contribution from Board members, the Board REHER  EFEEXNUHNTEEE  BRZE
has established executive committee, audit committee, nomination g REZEELFMNZEE  WERXHK
committee and remuneration committee with specific and clear written SRR EE S E A S ZE B R HITIRGE - #
terms of reference to assist in the execution of their duties. The terms EERRHNBEFTLE G RERE 2 QEH
of reference of each of the Board committees are reviewed from R B RELRR - TXEHISEZEG A
time to time, as are the committees’ structure and memberships. A A EELEENETEREETIIIERALSLE
further description of each of these committees is set out below. Board RoBERBERATEARNEESEERTESR
committees report to the Board on their works and findings. They ERHERRGRETAR  ERBAEREARE
adopt as far as practicable, the principles, procedures and arrangements B RERRHEELHES R BFEE
of the Board in relation to scheduling and conduct of meetings, notice B

of meetings and inclusion of agenda items, recording and availability of

minutes.

1.1.7 The company secretary attends all Board/Board committees meetings. 117 ARMEHFEREEES EEZE€eH - 2

All Directors have access to the company secretary who is responsible BESHIBKARWME - ARNMEEERRE
for ensuring that Board/Board committees procedures are observed and TEEE  EELEERFIMNEEE EEE
advising the Board/Board committees on compliance matters. SERTREFIELES -

1.1.8 To address the competing time commitments of directors who siton  1.1.8 ARG R ZEEESRE s ESHEMELFES
multiple boards, Board/Board committees meetings dates are scheduled H BERT EELECeRAYREFFIL

well in advance at the beginning of every calendar year. Notices THE - - THEFe EFEEeRRAERYD
of regular Board/Board committees meetings are given at least 14 REe#ABA+EREL - TEHEMESE &
days before the meeting date. For all other Board/Board committees ELERERBRTAB BN -

meetings, reasonable notices are given.
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1.1.9 All directors were given the opportunities to include matters to be

discussed in the agenda of Board/Board committees meetings. The
company secretary is delegated with the responsibility to prepare
these agendas and, where appropriate, take into account any matters
proposed by each director/committee member for inclusion in the
agenda.

1.1.10 Other than in exceptional circumstances, an agenda accompanied by

detailed board papers (prepared in such form and quality as will enable
the Board to make an informed decision on matters placed before it,
including but not limited to, background or explanatory information
relating to matters to be brought before the Board and internal financial
information such as quarterly management accounts, forecasts and
budgets with material variance between projections and actual results
explained) are circulated to all directors in a timely manner and at least
three days before the date of scheduled meeting.

1.1.11 Minutes of Board/Board committees meetings are recorded in detail

the matters considered by the participants of such meetings and
decisions reached, including concerns raised by directors or dissenting
views expressed. Draft minutes are circulated to relevant directors/
committee members within a reasonable time after the meetings are
held for comments and before being approved by the Board/Board
committees and taken as the true records of the proceedings of such
meetings at the immediate following meetings. They are kept by the
company secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any director.

1.1.12 Directors are provided in a timely manner with complete, adequate

explanation and information about the Company and its subsidiaries,
its activities, performances and its projects particularly including any
significant variances from a planned course of actions to enable them to
make an informed decision or assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects and to discharge their duties and responsibilities.
In the case when the directors have queries, they are provided with
the names and contact details of the Group’s senior management for
separate and independent access to them and they are able to obtain
more information than is volunteered by the management. Senior
management are from time to time brought into formal and informal
contact with the Board at Board meetings and other events.

1.1.13The Board and Board committees are provided with sufficient resources

to properly discharge their duties including access to independent
professional advisers under agreed procedures, if necessary, at the
expense of the Company.
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1.1.141f a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in a

matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the matter will be dealt with by holding a Board meeting
or a meeting of a Board committee set up for that purpose pursuant
to a resolution passed in a Board meeting. Any directors or any of
their associates who have material interests in a matter proposed by
the Board, the directors concerned will not be counted in the quorum
present at the Board meeting. The Board will take into account the
exceptions to the general voting prohibition, as set out in the Listing
Rules in considering whether a substantial shareholder or a director has
a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board. If the
relevant exceptions apply, such Board/Board committees meeting need
not be held.

1.1.15The Group has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability

1.2
1.21

1.2.2

1.2.3

34

insurance cover to indemnify directors of the Group against all costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by the directors in the
execution and discharge of his/her duties or in relation thereto.

Board Composition

The Board composition is reviewed, considered and discussed by
the Nomination Committee on an annual basis and the Nomination
Committee will make recommendations to the Board after the review.
The Nomination Committee has devised guidelines for ideal board size,
optimum number of executive and non-executive directors and board
membership criteria and those guidelines shall be reviewed and revised
periodically to meet business needs of the Group.

At March 31, 2011, the Board comprised seven directors of whom
three are executive directors and four are independent non-executive
directors. The size of the Board is conducive to effective discussion
and decision-making and has an appropriate balance of independent
directors to exercise independent judgement.

The attributes, skills and expertise among the existing directors are
considered appropriate to effectively lead and control the Group, taking
into account the scope and nature of its operations. The directors
have a mix of core competencies in areas such as accounting and
finance, business and management, industry knowledge and marketing
strategies. The experience and qualifications of directors and senior
management are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management”
section from page 21 to page 23 of this annual report.
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1.2.4

1.25

1.2.6

1.3
1.3.1

1.3.2

Independent non-executive directors have the same duties of care
and skill and fiduciary duties as executive directors. They are expressly
identified as such in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of the directors of the Company. The functions of independent
non-executive directors include, but not limited to:

o participating in Board meetings to bring in independent judgment
to bear on issues of corporate strategy, corporate performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standard of
conducts;

. taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

. serving on board committees, if invited; and

o scrutinizing the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.

In assessing the independence of the directors, the Board has examined
the different relationships identified under the Listing Rules that might
impair the directors’ independence and objectivity. The Board considers
that all of the independent non-executive directors are independent and
is satisfied of the directors’ ability to act with independent judgement.
Each of the independent non-executive directors has provided to the
Company an annual confirmation of independence required by the
Listing Rules.

Details of the membership of the Board (including the independent
non-executive directors) and roles and functions of directors are posted
on the Company’s website and such information is updated whenever
there are changes.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Appointment of new directors is a matter for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. It reviews the profiles of the candidates
and makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
nomination and retirement of directors.

At each annual general meeting (“AGM"), one-third of the directors are
required to retire from office. The directors to retire in every year shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last election or re-
election. New directors appointed by the Board after the last AGM shall
retire and are eligible for re-election at the AGM immediately following
their appointments. The new directors shall not be taken into account
in determining the number of directors who are to retire by rotation
at that AGM. Mr. Kao Ying Lun and Mr. Jack Schmuckli will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming AGM. All retiring directors are eligible for
re-election.
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Independent non-executive directors are appointed for a fixed term of
three years and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by
shareholders at AGM in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

The names and biographical details of the directors who will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM are set out in the
circular to shareholders to assist shareholders in making an informed
decision on their elections.

Newly appointed directors of the Company will receive induction and
reference materials to enable him/her to familiarize with the Group’s
history, mission, business operations and board and company policies.
Each director is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure that
he/she has a proper understanding of the operations and business of
the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under
statute and common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal and other
regulatory requirements and the governance policies of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the period from April 1, 2010 to July 11, 2010, Dr. Raymond
Chan assumes the role of both the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company. While serving as the chairman responsible
for the proceedings of the Board, Dr. Chan also bears executive
responsibility for the Group’s businesses. He ensures that:

. the Board functions effectively, and that all key and appropriate
issues are properly briefed and discussed by the Board in a timely
manner;

o good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established and all directors are encouraged to make full and
active participation to the affairs of the Group; and

. the Board acts in the best interests of the Group. He also
attends to the formulation and successful implementation of
group policies, the development of strategic operating plans
to reflect the longer-term objectives and priorities established
by the Board and is directly accountable to the Board for the
operating performance of the Group. With the assistance of the
management, Dr. Chan ensures that the funding requirements
of the businesses are met and closely monitors the operating
and financial results against plans and budgets, taking remedial
actions when necessary and advising the Board of significant
development and issues. He is also responsible for building and
maintaining an effective executive team to support him in his
role.
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1.4.2 The role of chairman and chief executive officer of the Group rests on
the same individual during the aforesaid period which deviates from
the code provision in the CG Code of not having a clear division of
responsibilities. The Board is of the view that this has not compromised
accountability and independent decision-making for the following
reasons:

o the non-executive directors form the majority of the Board of
which 4 out of a total of 6 are independent; and

o through discussions with the chairman and among themselves
during board meetings and beyond on pertinent issues affecting
the affairs and businesses of the Group, these independent
directors challenge the proposals and directions of the
management, thus enabling the Board to benefit from the
objective judgment.

1.4.3 Dr. Chan is one of the founders and a substantial shareholder of the

Group and has considerable industry experience. The Board is of the
view that it is in the best interests of the Group to have an executive
chairman so that the Board, and in particular the non-executive
directors, can have the benefit of a chairman who is knowledgeable
about the business of the Group and is most capable to guide
discussions and brief the Board in a timely manner on pertinent issues
and developments to facilitate open dialogue between the Board and
the management. He is also motivated to contribute to the growth and
profitability of the Group.

1.4.4 On July 12, 2010, Mr. Barry John Buttifant was appointed an Executive

Director and Group Chief Executive Officer of the Company while
Dr. Raymond Chan ceased to be the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and remained as the Chairman of the Board. Following the
said appointment, the Company is in full compliance with the code
provisions prescribed in the CG Code.

1.4.5 Other than regular board meetings, the chairman from time to time

meets with individual independent non-executive directors without
the executive directors or management present to discuss matters of
particular interest.

1.5 Board Committee
1.5.1 Executive Committee (“EC")

1.5.1

1.5

.1 The EC of the Board comprises of all executive directors. The quorum

necessary for transaction of business is two.

.12The EC meets as and when required to oversee the day-to-day

management of the Group and has all the general powers of the Board
except those matters specifically reserved for the Board.
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1.5.1.3 The principal duties of EC include:

o to manage the business and investments by overseeing the
Group's operations, projects, assets and liabilities, budgets,
compliance obligations and financial performance in accordance
with the policies and directives of the Board;

o to make recommendations to the Board as to the Group's overall
policies, strategies and financial objectives in the development of
its business and to ensure their implementation and execution;
and

. to provide leadership to staff and management and to nominate
key personnel and ensure appropriate levels of authority are
delegated to them.

1.5.1.4 Fifteen meetings of the EC were held during the year ended March 31,
2011. All resolutions resolved by the EC are reported to the Board at
quarterly Board meetings.

1.5.2 Nomination Committee (“NC")

1.5.2.1 The NC comprises of a majority of independent non-executive directors,
which meets at least once a year. It is chaired by Mr. Jack Schmuckli
and comprises two other members, namely, Mr. Kao Ying Lun and
Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley. All NC members, with the exception
of Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley, are independent non-executive
directors. The quorum necessary for the transaction of business is two.

1.5.2.2 The terms of reference of the NC are posted on the Company’s website.
The principal functions of the NC include:

. to make recommendations to the Board on all new appointments
or re-appointments of directors, the establishment of a succession
plan for directors, in particular the chairman and chief executive
officer and the composition of the Board;

o to identify and nominate qualified individuals, subject to the
approval of the Board, to be additional directors or to fill vacancy

in the Board as and when they arise;

. to review on an annual basis the Board structure, size and
composition and the independent element of the Board;

. to develop the criteria for selection of directors; and

. to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

1.5.2.3 The chairman of the NC will report to the Board on its proceedings and
recommendations after each meeting.
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1.5.2.4 One NC meeting was held during the year ended March 31, 2011.

1.5.3 Remuneration Committee (“RC")

1.5.3.1 The RC comprises a majority of independent non-executive directors,
which meets at least once a year. It is chaired by Mr. Jack Schmuckli
and comprises two other members, namely, Mr. Kao Ying Lun and
Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley. All RC members, with the exception
of Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley, are independent non-executive
directors. The quorum necessary for the transaction of business is two.

1.5.3.2 The terms of reference of the RC are posted on the Company’s website.
The RC consults the chairman and chief executive officer about its
proposals relating to the remuneration of other executive directors and
have access to professional advice if considered necessary. The principal
functions of the RC include:

. to recommend to the Board on the Company’s policies and
structure for the remuneration of the directors and senior
management of the Group;

o to determine the remuneration packages of all executive directors
and senior management; and

. to review and approve their performance-based remuneration.

1.5.3.3 The chairman of the RC will report to the Board on its proceedings and
recommendations, where appropriate, for the Board’'s consideration
and/or approval.

1.5.3.4 The RC met once during the year ended March 31, 2011. In accordance
with its terms of reference, the RC reviewed the directors’ fees policy,
the Group’s executive remuneration policy and the grant of share
options to the management of the Group during the year.

1.5.3.5 A general description of the Group’s emolument policy and long-term
incentive schemes as well as the basis of determining the emolument
payable to the directors are disclosed in the section of “Operations
Review"” from page 10 to page 17 of this annual report.

1.5.4 Audit Committee ("AC")

1.5.4.1 The AC consists of three members, namely, Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony
(chairman), Mr. Kao Ying Lun and Mr. Jack Schmuckli, all of whom are
independent non-executive directors. The Board is of the opinion that
the majority of the members of the AC possess accounting and financial
management expertise or experience to discharge their duties.
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1.5.4.2 The operations of the AC are regulated by its terms of reference which

40

have been approved by the Board and is subject to review by the Board
from time to time. The terms of reference of the AC are posted on the
Company’s website. The major duties of AC include:

. to consider and recommend the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor;

o to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor, any questions of resignation or dismissal of that
auditor;

. to review and monitor external auditor’'s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

. to discuss with external auditor the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

o to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services and to make
recommendation of any measures for improvements to be taken;

o to monitor integrity of financial statements, annual and interim
reports and to review significant financial reporting judgement
contained in them. In this regard, in reviewing the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements and the annual and
the interim reports before submission to the Board, focusing
particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards;

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting; and

(vii) any matters that have been raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting

function or auditors;

. to review the Group's financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems;

IDT International Limited BEEEER LT

154 BREEGZERTESTSHENBERER

=3

mwm;

CEFE T AREREFLEN - X
BevBEREHNARREY EXTERE
ECE

EERERRAL  BRERERINEZBED

HESNERZBUED 2 Fr B - BE BRI Rz
HENBHEREHR 2 (I

RIBE BB EEHN & BRI BN 2 8
THREBIE - URRBREFZ AR

BRI T A AT R SNEE AR BT v s 5 B
Bz MERSEMBRE T

FLES PR HNIE A2 BRAR IR 1 SR AZ AR TSl E
EERE O UWHEEMEEEIREHES
B

ERWPBRE FERPHREHZEMN -
WEMEMHEEMBRRZEARAL -
Hitr REXEEGRLTEMNTE - F
HREEWHRREFE P PHRER
LEERRUATEE :

() FEASHHREREHES

iy BREEBHEHOHT

(i) BAZRBIEEZEKNSE

(iv) CERBELEBRREAREER

(vi) REERETRALEME RS
WEPIRE + &

(i) BARFEAGITRMBRBITEZ
BT RBEIMRE ZEMEER

WA AEEZ BT - NP kAR
EIRHIE

Annual Report 2011 %R



o to discuss with the management the system of internal control
and ensure that the management has discharged its duty to have
an effective internal control system including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget;

o to consider any findings of major investigations of internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response;

. to review the internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company and to review and
monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

o to review the external auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management'’s response and to ensure that the Board will
provide a timely response to the issues raised;

. to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices; and

. to report to the Board on matters set out above and to consider
other topics, as defined by the Board.

1.5.43The AC has explicit authority to investigate into any matter under the
scope of its duties and the authority to obtain independent professional
advice. It is given full access to and cooperation of the management.
It has been provided with reasonable resources to discharge its duties
properly. In the course of reviewing the Group's financial information,
the AC members liaise closely with the Board and the Group Chief
Financial Officer to gather relevant information. At least once a year,
the AC meets the external auditors without the management present.

1.5.44 The AC had met four times to review the quarterly, interim and annual
results of the Group during the year ended March 31, 2011.

1.5.45 Full minutes of the AC are kept by the company secretary of the
Company. Draft and finalized minutes of the AC meetings are circulated
to all members of the AC for their comment and records respectively, in
both cases within reasonable time after the conclusion of the meetings.

Annual Report 2011 &R

. HEEE I WAMEERS  WHEREE
BRETEBE  AES ARz AEREE b
ERAERHEEHER BFEABEHER
ZEBTAAREARAZ G RMBRABRTE
NRHERE RAFEREZETR T 25
aHEl

. ERBEANEZESECEERAEER (T
REEFELRNEQRET) REEE ZE
fE

© BRERBBRAL - BRAOBRE BRI
BEBEDE A M LRRNBE D
BRWARENE - ARARANEEE S
ST - AR RE RSB WA 2B
B

. R SMNE BB 22X T E R EAKERIEN
FEAIE) - AR BN S & a8k - BTS
MR REIE ARG EEE R EMEAR
BREEEZCE  ABRESGYIRD
ZEENEEHEE

. wa A RE MG R G BEREED &

. S EEAENEEAEETSER &
MEAEMBEESFUENRE -

ERZERAARREN REARERERSE
MEFRARERBYEXER  WETEER
HEENIERBOAE EREE L ERH
BEMER  UZRETHRE AEERMAKHE
ZHBENNBREY  ERZBEREEEERE
BN BRAEETBEUNGSHEREN BXEE8
SRIVEF-RRNERELTESER T EINE
A& o

1544 REEZE - T——F A=+ HIFEEXZLE

SERRTORER  EHFE  PHREEFEE -

MEEEZHARERLHEHARFRRWER
B BRZESSHLBIERERER RE
BERE-BRAERNHANEETEREXZES
RE - UHEERHERREFRE -

i B

IDT International Limited BEEIFRER A7 41



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBES

1.6 The following table summarizes the attendance of individual directors 1.6
and committee members in the financial year under review:

B EEREEeR 8RBV BFENLFS
L ACERINE

No. of Meeting attended/No. of Meeting held
HEEERE SRETAY

Executive Audit Nomination Remuneration 2010
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee AGM
—E-ZF
[
=g H7TZEE BNZEEE REEEE FMzaee BEAE
(Note)
(F3E)
Executive Director HITES
Raymond Chan BRIE X 4/4 10/15 — — — 1”1
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley Bz 474 15/15 — 7N 17 ”n
Barry John Buttifant FEHN 212 10115 — — — 11
Independent Non-Executive Director By E#HTES
Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony BRI 474 — 4/4 — — ”n
Kao Ying Lun ] 4/4 — 4/4 11 17 17
Jack Schmuckli Jack Schmuckli 4/4 — 4/4 7 11 —
Kenichi Ohmae KA — 1/4 — — — — ”

Note: Apart from the duly convened meeting of the directors, resolutions in
writing were circulated and passed by all directors on one occasion during
the financial year ended March 31, 2011.

1.7 Securities Transactions by Officers 1.7
1.7.1 The Company has adopted a Code for Securities Transactions by  1.7.1
Officers of the Group (the “Code"”) on terms no less exacting than
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

1.7.2 Having made specific enquiry of all directors, they have confirmed that  1.7.2
they fully complied with the required standards set out in both the
Model Code and the Code throughout the year ended March 31, 2011.

1.7.3 Officers as defined in the Code who is deemed to be in possession of ~ 1.7.3
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company or
its shares are prohibited from dealing in shares of the Company during
the black-out period.
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2.1
211

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.1.4

2.2
2.21

2.2.2

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2011, the directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable.

Management recognizes the importance of providing the Board with
appropriate and relevant information on an accurate and timely basis.
Quarterly business review and financial reports comparing the Group’s
actual performance with budget and highlighting major relevant issues
are provided to the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment
on the Group's performance, position and prospects.

The Board endeavours to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Group’s position and prospects to extend to the
Group's financial reporting including annual and interim reports, other
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as information
required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

The Company publishes its interim and annual financial results in
accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls
and is committed to managing business risks and maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets.

The Group's internal control system encompasses its policies, processes,
tasks, and other aspects of the Group that taken together:

o facilitate its effective and efficient operation by allowing it
to respond appropriately to significant business, operational,
financial, compliance and other risks with a view of achieving
business objectives. This includes the safeguarding of assets
from inappropriate use or from loss and fraud and ensuring that
liabilities are identified and managed;

° help ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal or external
reporting; and

o help ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations,
and also with internal policies with respect to the conduct of
business.
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The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance of no material mis-statement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group's objectives.

The key procedures that the Board established to provide effective
internal controls are as follows:

o A distinct organization structure exists with defined lines of
authority and responsibilities. Division/Departments Heads
are involved in preparing the strategic plan which laid down
the corporate strategies to be pursued in the coming year for
achieving the annual operating plan and the annual operational
and financial targets. Both the strategic plan and the annual
operating plan laid down the foundation for the preparation of
the annual budget by which resources are allocated in accordance
with identified and prioritized business opportunities. The
strategic plan has been approved by the Executive Committee
subject to annual review. The annual operating plan and annual
budget are approved by the Board yearly;

o A comprehensive monthly management reporting system is in
place providing financial and operational performance indicators
to the management, and the relevant financial information for
reporting and disclosure purpose. Variances against budgets are
analyzed, and explained, and appropriate actions are taken, if
necessary, to rectify deficiencies noted; and

o System and procedures are in place to identify, measure, manage
and control risks including legal, credit, market, operational,
environmental, behavioral and system risks that may have an
impact on the Group.

The Group'’s Internal Audit Department (“IA”) performs regular audit
reviews of the risks and key controls of the Group. IA plays an important
role in monitoring the Group's internal governance, evaluating the
quality of the internal control system and informing the Board on a
quarterly basis whether a sound internal control system is maintained
and operated by the management in compliance with agreed processes
and standards. To preserve the independence of the internal audit
function, the Head of IA reports directly to the AC on audit matters and
to the chief executive officer on administrative matters.
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Using a risk management-based approach audit, IA plans its internal
audit projects annually in consultation with, but independent of,
management. The audit methodology and process adopted by IA
include understanding and analyzing the business, determining risk
areas within key processes, analyzing and evaluating the process control
effectiveness and communicating results and follow up. Independent
reviews of different financial, business and functional operations and
activities will be conducted with audit resources being focused on
higher risk areas. Ad-hoc reviews will also be conducted on areas of
concern identified by the AC and the management.

Division/Department Heads will be notified of the control deficiencies
noted for rectification, and IA will follow up with the implementation of
audit recommendations on a regular basis. Significant internal control
weaknesses are brought to the attention of the AC and if necessary to
the Board, and to the senior management for remedial actions.

The Board, through the AC, has conducted reviews of the effectiveness
of the Group’s system of internal control covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions. The Board, through the review of the AC, is
satisfied that the Group has fully complied with the code provisions on
internal controls during the year under review as set forth in the CG
Code.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year, the fees paid to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the
Company’s external auditor, for audit services of the Company and its
subsidiaries amounted to HK$4.7 million (2010: HK$4.8 million) and
for non-audit related services, representing mainly taxation services,
amounted to HK$0.9 million (2010: HK$0.3 million).

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company strives to convey to shareholders pertinent information
in a clear, detailed, timely manner and on a regular basis and to take
into consideration their views and inputs, and address shareholders’
concerns. Their views are communicated to the Board as a whole.

The Company communicates with its shareholders through the
publication of annual and interim reports, results announcement and
press release. All shareholders’ communications are also available on
the Company’s website at www.idthk.com (“Website").

The AGM provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views
with the Board. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of AC,
NC and/or RC, or in their absence, members of the Board committees
are available to answer shareholders’ questions.
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Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
directors. Votes cast on each resolution at the general meetings are
properly counted and recorded.

Details of the poll voting procedures and rights of shareholders to
demand a poll are included in the circular to shareholders dispatched
together with this annual report.

At the commencement of the AGM, the shareholders are provided with
an explanation of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and
answers on any questions from shareholders whenever voting by way
of poll is required. The poll results are posted on the Stock Exchange's
website and the Company’s Website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognized that effective communication to investors is
the key to establish investor confidence and attracting new investors.
Measures taken by the Group include:

Annual & Interim Reporting

Annual and interim reports are prepared and issued to all shareholders
within the prescribed period stipulated by the Stock Exchange. All
results announcement and reports are posted on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s Website.

Media and Analysts Briefings

Briefings for media and analysts are organized by the Company
from time to time. During the briefings, the Group’s management
provides detailed explanations on the Group’s business trends and
drivers in respect of the relevant periods and ensures that the financial
performance and accounts of the Group are well understood. There
is also ample opportunity for the analysts and media to ask questions
and interact with the executive directors and senior management. All
presentation materials on the Group’s financial results, announcements
and news release are available on the Company’s Website.

The Group regularly releases corporate information such as awards
received, product launches and the latest news of the Group’s
developments on the Company’s Website. The public are welcome to
give their comments and make their enquiries through the Company’s
website and the management will provide their prompt response.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B ZHMERES

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE MEMBERS OF IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of IDT International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) set out on pages 49 to 127, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at March 31, 2011, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B ZBERES

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2011 and of the Group’s
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

June 29, 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeTEWmER

For the year ended March 31, 2011 #Z2=—F——F=A=+—HILFE

2010
NOTES HK$'M
L BEBST

Turnover - 5 1,623.6 1,394.9
Cost of goods sold SHE AN (1,090.9) (903.9)
Gross profit E 5 532.7 491.0
Other income H iU zs 12.5 33.0
Other gains and losses HAapris M EE 6 (39.2) (37.8)
Research and development costs e LFEEER (86.6) (84.6)
Distribution and selling expenses SR EERY (266.1) (286.5)
General administrative expenses — TR (191.8) (197.5)
Interest on bank and other borrowings ~ ZBRAFERNEHEE 2 BT

wholly repayable within five years BEENEMEE ZFE (7.1) (9.3)
Loss before taxation BR7%% Al & 18 7 (45.6) (91.7)
Taxation iiE 10 (1.6) (63.3)
Loss for the year AREEEE (47.2) (155.0)
Other comprehensive income: HEh 2 mEikes

Exchange differences arising on HME B INETSE R

translation of foreign operations N =58 12.0 16.3

Total comprehensive expenses AEEEHEMX AR

for the year (35.2) (138.7)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: LA A LEEARFE (EI8)

A
Owners of the Company iNNETEZ ZEN (49.6) (138.2)
Non-controlling interests PRI 2.4 (16.8)
(47.2) (155.0)

Total comprehensive (expenses) income AN A LEEEE (FX)

attributable to: W g

Owners of the Company ZiN/NCIE Y= DN (37.5) (122.0)

Non-controlling interests FEEIRE A 2.3 (16.7)

(35.2) (138.7)

Loss per share BREE

— Basic and diluted — HAREE 11 (1.98) HK cents B¥5{ll  (5.53) HK cents Z #54l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR R

At March 31,2011 R=F——F=A=+—H

3.31.2011 3.31.2010 4.1.2009
NOTES HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
B sE BETETT BERETT B EETT
(Restated)
(&E5)
Non-current assets ERBNEE
Property, plant and equipment I =Y 12 132.9 1711 219.7
Intangible assets EEE 13 46.8 60.0 78.8
Goodwill SES 14 34.1 33.9 34.0
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 15 0.4 — —
Deferred tax assets REFRIEEE 16 38.9 38.1 45.8
253.1 303.1 378.3
Current assets MENEE
Inventories 8 17 295.7 207.3 2491
Trade and other receivables JPE ST BR K % L Ath e U R T8 18 264.6 274.8 306.3
Tax reserve certificate i FH — — 435
Taxation recoverable Al e R IR 0.4 0.9 0.4
Held for trading investment HIEBEEKRE 19 5.7 9.9 —
Forward contract assets REAHNEE 24 — 0.1 —
Short-term bank deposits REHEISRITER 20 74.2 158.6 —
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RIS 20 340.9 524.0 632.4
981.5 1,175.6 1,231.7
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables and JFEE 1F B K B L b £<F
accruals RIBENRTEIRE R 21 273.0 249.8 219.9
Bills payables ANESE 22 0.1 0.8 1.0
Obligations under finance leases AR —FRNER I
due within one year HAEDS 23 0.1 1.4 35
Forward contract liabilities REAHNEE 24 12.4 — 44
Taxation payable JE BT IE 2.5 20.5 14.6
Bank loans RITER 25 305.9 373.8 330.6
Bank overdrafts RITEX 25 5.8 6.7 18.6
599.8 653.0 592.6
Net current assets mEEEFE 381.7 522.6 639.1
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRSERE 634.8 825.7 1,017.4
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Obligations under finance leases AR —FRER I
due after one year HHER 23 0.1 — 1.4
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEEE 16 13.1 13.2 17.7
13.2 13.2 19.1
Net assets BESE 621.6 8125 998.3
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3.31.2011 3.31.2010 4.1.2009
NOTES HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
Pt 5 BEHET B EET BEEET
(Restated)
(Fe &%)
Capital and reserves AR Kt
Share capital &N 26 250.2 250.2 250.2
Reserves s 371.3 375.3 497.1
Equity attributable to owners of RA AR NEERES
the Company 621.5 625.5 747.3
Non-controlling interests R 0.1 187.0 251.0
Total equity W AR 621.6 812.5 998.3

The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 127 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on June 29, 2011 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Raymond Chan, JP
BRIEX @ AF#+

Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer

FEREETTRARE
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Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley

FREE &
Executive Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

o A HEE 3L 44
mEEREER
For the year ended March 31, 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREE ARG
Properties Share Non-
Share Share Other revaluation ~ options Translation  Revenue controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total interests equity
nE BRE g% 2R
ke RGEE HpRE  ERRG e BERE RREG ] BE  REEE
HKS'M HK$'™ HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
AREET AYAET A4REn ABEEn A¥AEn AYEEn #BEET AKAER AYEER ABEER
At April 1, 2009 RZZZNEHA-H 2502 1516 — 219 21 (85.2) 4007 7473 2510 9933
Exchange differences arising from ~ BENEREL 7 ERZE
translation of foreign operations — — — — — 16.2 — 16.2 0.1 16.3
Loss for the year TEEEE = = = = = = (1382 (1382) (16.8) (15.0)
Total comprehensive income AEERENE(RY) 28
(expenses) for the year — — — — — 16.2 (138.2) (1220) (16.7) (138.7)
Recognition of equity-settled share  BEAUAER TR MIRED
based payments BREZ[E - - - - 02 - - 02 - 0.2
Lapse of share options FIRERN = = = - (0.6) = 06 = = =
Acquistion of additional interestin 5B A ] 2 il
a subsidiary — — — — - — — — (44.1) (44.1)
Dividends paid tonon-controling A P3RS 2 RS
interests — — — — - — — — (3.2) (32
At March 31, 2010 RZZ-FF=A=1-A 2502 1516 = 219 1.7 (69.0) 263.1 6255 187.0 8125
Exchange differences arising from ~ AZE5NEHEL 2 BN 28
translation of foreign operations - - - — - 121 - 121 (0.1) 120
(Loss) profit for the year TEE (BR) &R — — — — — — (49.6) (49.6) 24 (47.2)
Total comprehensive income AEEEENE (Y 88
(expenses) for the year - - - - - 121 (49.6) (37.5) 23 (352)
Recognition of equity-settled share B LR [T MUIRI
based payments REEZ{I3 - - - - 10 - - 10 - 10
Lapse of share options BB - - - - (02 - 02 - - -
Acquisition of additional interestin 25 —FHB AR ZRR
a subsidiary — — 325 — — — — 325 (1892) (156.7)
At March 31, 2011 R-E——F=f=1-H 2502 1516 325 219 25 (56.9) 237 6215 0.1 621.6
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEHEERER

For the year ended March 31, 2011 HE=—ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

2010
HK$'M
BEEET
(Restated)
(g&E:5)
Cash flows from operating activities KEEHEEZRERE
Loss before taxation MR%L A2 B8 (45.6) (91.7)
Adjustments for: FE
Interest income A EWA (1.4) (1.1)
Interest expenses FEZH 71 9.3
Share-based payment expenses LARGAD BEEZ MRS 1.0 0.2
Depreciation of property, plant W% BN REZITE
and equipment 61.6 62.0
Discount on acquisition of additional R B A FR G
interest in a subsidiary Z 3 — (16.3)
Amortisation of intangible assets B A E 2 B 36.9 39.9
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWZ - MR REE
and equipment 2 &8 4.9 29
Impairment losses on trade receivables FEU AR TR 2 R E & 1R 4.6 19.1
Write down of inventories MR FE 10.0 253
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes FZARIMEREKRBELE R Z
on inter-company balances [ERBF) L (4.0) (12.6)
Operating cash flows before movements LEASEPRICLERSRE
in working capital 75.1 37.0
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEEm md (90.2) 26.8
Decrease in trade and other receivables JFEE LT BR R R L At R LSRR TEL R 12.7 29.0
Increase in trade and other payables and accruals &1t B 2k K ELth i < 7108 & TE 12 B F 42 0 20.0 25.8
Decrease (increase) in held for trading investment #H{EE &% & 4> (3& 1) 4.2 (9.9)
Increase (decrease) in forward contracts RHAA H1E GRl ) 12.5 (4.5)
Decrease in bills payables ERNZEBRD 0.7) (0.2)
Cash from operations K EEMERE 33.6 104.0
Tax refunded REFR 0.1 —
Taxation paid EBANTIIE (19.3) (11.1)
Net cash from operating activities KRBTSR SRR 14.4 92.9
Investing activities HEEE
Decrease (increase) in short-term bank deposits %8 B3R 1T1F 2R 4> (& 40) 84.4 (158.6)
Product development costs paid B EmSAEKAR (22.9) (20.5)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment NBEWE - MR RR (28.1) (15.9)
Payment for patents and trademarks R EEZEZ AR (0.8) (0.6)
Interest received B FIE 14 1.1
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYE - Has KBS IE
and equipment 0.2 0.8
Purchase of available-for-sale investments HBEAHEERE (0.4) —
Net cash from (used in) investing activities BEEEFTE (FTRE)IRe 558 33.8 (193.7)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEEERER

For the year ended March 31, 2011 #Z2=—F——F=A=+—HILFE

2010
HK$'M
BEEET
(Restated)
€= 7lp)
Financing activities B EE
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITER (506.7) (155.3)
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary — #&3% — BB A & Z i 5 (156.7) (27.8)
Interest paid 2FHE (7.1) (7.5)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases {32 B 7578 4 (& 75 (1.2) (3.5)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 1 B 8 2 R SR AR A 2 R A AR B
of subsidiaries — (3.2)
Bank loans raised MEBIRITER 438.8 198.6
Net cash (used in) from financing activities RE RS (Fr#E) FTBEIR & 558 (232.9) 1.3
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RekERRESEE 2R FE (184.7) (99.5)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FHzHekERBAESER
the year 517.3 613.8
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes MEREE) 2 2 2.5 3.0
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZBENERBEEER 335.1 517.3
Analysis of the balances of cash and RekFERREER
cash equivalents EER DT
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIRE 340.9 524.0
Bank overdrafts RITEX (5.8) (6.7)
335.1 517.3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR AR ML

For the year ended March 31, 2011 HEZ=ZT——F=A=+—HI-FE

1. GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability. The shares of the Company are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the Corporate Information to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are engaged in the design, development, manufacture,
sales and marketing of various consumer electronic products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations (“new and
revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA").

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment
Transactions

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) Business Combinations

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Right Issues

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible Hedged Items

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009

HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part of

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008

HK(IFRIC)-INT 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

HK-INT 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs
has had no material effect on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the current or prior accounting periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= ANH

72 j =]

For the year ended March 31, 2011 HZ—=

56

B R AL

T —E=A=t—ALEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and
disclosure only

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements”

The application of HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) has resulted in changes
in the Group’s accounting policies for changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries of the Group.

Specifically, the revised Standard has affected the Group’s accounting
policies regarding changes in the Group’s ownership interests in its
subsidiaries that do not result in loss of control. In prior years, in the
absence of specific requirements in HKFRSs, increases in interests
in existing subsidiaries were treated in the same manner as the
acquisition of subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain purchase gain
being recognised, when appropriate. For decreases in interests in
existing subsidiaries that did not involve a loss of control, the difference
between the consideration received and the adjustment to the non-
controlling interests was recognised in profit or loss. Under HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2008), all such increases or decreases are dealt with in equity,
with no impact on goodwill or profit or loss.

When control of a subsidiary is lost as a result of a transaction, event
or other circumstance, the revised Standard requires the Group to
derecognise all assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests at their
carrying amounts and to recognise the fair value of the consideration
received. Any retained interest in the former subsidiary is recognised
at its fair value at the date control is lost. The resulting difference is
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss.

These changes have been applied prospectively from April 1, 2010 in
accordance with the relevant transitional provisions.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and
disclosure only (continued)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements” (continued)

The application of the revised Standard has affected the accounting for
the Group'’s acquisition of additional interests in IDT Holdings (Singapore)
Limited (“IDTS"), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
which delisted from the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
in the current year. In prior years, a discount on acquisition of additional
interest in a subsidiary was recognised in profit or loss. The change in
policy has resulted in the difference of HK$32.5 million between the
consideration paid of HK$156.7 million and the carrying amount of
non-controlling interests of HK$189.2 million being recognised directly
in equity, instead of being recognised in profit or loss. Therefore, the
change in accounting policy has resulted in an increase in loss for the
year of HK$32.5 million. The change in policy has also resulted in the
change of presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows.
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in its subsidiaries that
do not result in loss of control have been included in cash flows from
financing activities instead of cash flows from investing activities. As a
result, the cash consideration paid in the prior year of HK$27.8 million
was restated and included in cash flows from financing activities. The
cash consideration paid in the current year of HK$156.7 million has
been included in cash flows from financing activities.

In addition, under HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008), the definition of non-
controlling interest has been changed.

Specifically, under the revised Standard, non-controlling interest
is defined as the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to a parent. The new terminology is used in the consolidated
financial statements.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 “Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause”

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 “Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the borrower of a term loan that contains a repayment
on demand clause” (“HK INT 5”) clarifies that term loans that include a
clause that gives the lender the unconditional right to call the loans at
any time (“repayment on demand clause”) should be classified by the
borrower as current liabilities. The Group has applied HK INT 5 for the
first time in the current year. HK INT 5 requires retrospective application.

In order to comply with the requirements set out in HK INT 5, the Group
has changed its accounting policy on classification of term loans with
a repayment on demand clause. In the past, the classification of such
term loans were determined based on the agreed scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. Under HK INT 5, term loans with
a repayment on demand clause are classified as current liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R IR AR ML

For the year ended March 31, 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and
disclosure only (continued)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 “Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause” (continued)

As a result, bank loans that contain a repayment on demand clause
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$188.7 million have been
reclassified from non-current liabilities to current liabilities as at March
31, 2010. As at March 31, 2009, no bank loans that are repayable
more than one year after the end of the reporting period but contain
a repayment on demand clause is noted. As at March 31, 2011, bank
loans (that are repayable more than one year after the end of the
reporting period and contain a repayment on demand clause) with the
aggregate carrying amount of HK$104.1 million have been classified as
current liabilities. The application of HK INT 5 has had no impact on the
reported profit or loss and loss per share for the current and prior years.

Such term loans have been presented in the earliest time band in the
maturity analysis for financial liabilities (see note 29 for details).

Summary of the effects of the above changes in
accounting policies

The effect of changes in accounting policies described above on the
results for current year by line items is as follows:

2.

FERFTR] RASER] 2 BB BE|RE
ZR([HEMBHREZER ] @

AREB2IRBBZHIREET 2ER
Bt 5 4 5 22 Al ()
BEARBESH[MBRRZES — ERAHE
EUREREERINERERN D8I ()

Eit - B2 REKERGR  REAERBEK
188 7EBILZIRITER  ER=ZTE—ZTF=A
=+ —HEFRBEEEH I BEARDAEE I
IR _ETNE=A=+—"08 BEET
REREEBRRZBTERERNREHRLEER
B —FREE - N-_T——&=A=1+—8"
EEEIRERERERZRITERAER RS H
MAEE R —FRER  REAEABE 1041
BETZRITERESEARDAG - BAEE
RESHBERNRBEFENZIBRRESREE
WL -

ZEEHERNY BB BRI M T IARER
RAER (LB EE 20 54k ) o

PR ETTRRE B VERE

PR BREPUAFERXEEHANTEN
T

Year ended
March 31, 2011
HE_E——F

=A=+-—H

HFEE
HKS$'M
BEEHET

Decrease in discount on acquisition of
additional interest in a subsidiary and
increase in loss for the year

REFEERZIEM

BB RRRD 2R K

32,5

There is no impact on the results for the year ended March 31, 2010
as the changes in accounting policies for changes in interests in
subsidiaries was applied prospectively.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSSs") (continued)

Summary of the effects of the above changes in
accounting policies (continued)

The effects of the above changes in accounting policies on the financial
positions of the Group as at March 31, 2010 is as follows:

Bank borrowings — current

RITIEE — R
Bank borrowings — non-current it

RITEE — 36

2. BRI REER] 2B EBMBRE
ZH (THEMBREER D @0

PRE RSB L ERE (@)

E S BREHHRNEER
=t Elzﬁﬁ%ﬂjiﬂz?’gﬁﬂT

As at
3.31.2010 As at
(originally 3.31.2010
stated) Adjustments (restated)
05%7)) EEES KB
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BEARET BEBEET
185.1 188.7 373.8
188.7 (188.7) —

Total effect on net assets and equity

HEEFENERZATE

There is no impact on the financial position as at April 1, 2009.

The effects of the above changes in accounting policies on the Group'’s

g

THEMNA—H 2P EIRRLBRE

BEFBEREHHARBENAFE R ZHIFE

basic loss per share for the current and prior year are as follows: BRAREEZZENT ¢
Impact on basic
loss per share
BREXER
28
Year ended
March 31, 2011
BE-ZT——F
=B=+—H
WFFE
HK cents
AL
Figures before adjustments FERIEE (0.68)
Adjustment arising from changes in the Group’s BREAEERHE R A 2 HEEESEEH 2
accounting policies in relation to changes in ST BURBE P3| B
ownership interests in subsidiaries (1.30)
Figures after adjustments FHEBEE (1.98)
There is no impact on the basic and diluted loss per share for the year HE-_ZT-—ZTF=A=A E-f— BIEFEERE

ended March 31, 2010.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fortheyearended March 31, 2011@1 T——F=A=1+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010"

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of Financial

Assets?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements*
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements*
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities*
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement*
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets®

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures®

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) Separate Financial Statements*

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures*

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement®

HK(IFRIC)-INT 14
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-INT 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2010 and January
1, 2011, as appropriate.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2010.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2011.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2012.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011.

[ T T I

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November 2009) introduces
new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 (as revised in November 2010) adds requirements for
financial liabilities and for derecognition.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
are subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change relates to
financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the presentation of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as at fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit
or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 that will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for financial
year ending March 31, 2014 will have an impact on classification and
measurement of the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets but not
on other financial assets and financial liabilities.
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62

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKFRS 13, HKAS 27 (as revised in
2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) are mandatorily effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. Early application
is permitted. However, excluding HKFRS 13, if an entity chooses to
apply any of the other five new or revised standards early, it must apply
all five at the same time. The directors anticipate these standards will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the period
beginning April 1, 2013. The directors have not yet had an opportunity
to consider the potential impact of the adoption of these standards.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at revalued amount or fair values,
as appropriate and explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(“its subsidiaries”). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group's equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
Prior to April 1, 2010, losses applicable to the non-controlling interests
in excess of the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s equity were
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that
the non-controlling interests had a binding obligation and were able to
make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries on or after April 1, 2010

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss
has been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity, the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Company
had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries prior to April 1, 2010

Increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were treated in the same
manner as the acquisition of subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain
purchase gain being recognised where appropriate. For decreases in
interests in subsidiaries, regardless of whether the disposals would
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries, the difference
between the consideration received and the adjustment to the carrying
amount of the non-controlling interests was recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations

Business combinations that took place prior to April 1, 2010
Acquisitions of businesses were accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition was measured at the aggregate
of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable
to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that met the relevant conditions
for recognition were generally recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the recognised amounts of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after assessment, the
Group's interest in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeded the cost of the
acquisition, the excess was recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The non-controlling interest in the acquiree was initially measured at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis
of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. An impairment loss for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Revenue from sales of moulds are recognised when the moulds are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset (excluding financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss) is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, is
stated at cost or fair value less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by
paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” from
the requirement to make regular revaluations of the Group’s land
and buildings which had been carried at revalued amounts prior to
September 30, 1995, and accordingly no further revaluation of land and
buildings is carried out. Prior to September 30, 1995, the revaluation
increase arising on the revaluation of these assets was credited to the
properties revaluation reserve. Any future decreases in value of these
assets will be dealt with as an expense to the extent that they exceed
the balance, if any, on the properties revaluation reserve relating to
a previous revaluation of the same asset. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued asset, the corresponding revaluation surplus is
transferred to revenue reserve.

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than properties under construction less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the
term of the relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on disposal
or retirement of the property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Product development costs
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

— the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale;

— the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

— the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

— the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for an internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, product
development cost is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, an internally-generated intangible
asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible
assets acquired separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Patents and trademarks

Patents and trademarks are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic
life.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other
than goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that other standard.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged
as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary difference
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial position as
a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s policy on borrowing costs. Contingent
rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets comprise of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments
other than those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit
or loss, of which interest income is excluded from net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL has two sub-categories, including financial
assets held for trading and those designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

3 it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

If a reliable measure of fair value is no longer available for a financial
asset, the fair value of the financial asset on that date becomes its
deemed cost. The financial asset is subsequently measured at cost less
any impairment. If a reliable measure becomes available for a financial
asset for which such a measure was previously not available, the asset
is remeasured at fair value, and the difference between its carrying
amount and fair value is recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash and trade and other
receivables) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 90 days or observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of a financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When trade
receivables are considered uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of
the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities excluding derivatives

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, bills payables,
bank loans and bank overdrafts are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivate
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended March 31, 2011 HEZE=ZT——F=A=+—HI-FE

3.

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(the translation reserve).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after
April 1, 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
the translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

Share options granted to employees of the Group

Share options granted before November 7, 2002 or granted after
November 7, 2002 and vested before April 1, 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the
consolidated financial statements until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in respect of the value of options granted.
Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued are
recorded as additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares,
and the excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal value
of the shares is recorded as share premium. Option which lapse or are
cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register of
outstanding options.

Share options granted after November 7, 2002 and vested after April 1,
2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to the share
options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in the share options reserve will be transferred to revenue
reserve.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of giving rise to a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. At March
31, 2011, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment was
HK$132.9 million (2010: HK$171.1 million).

The estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of a similar nature and function.
Useful lives may change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to industry cycles. Management
will increase the depreciation charges where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, and it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Recoverability of internally generated intangible asset
During the year, management reconsidered the recoverability of its
intangible asset arising from the Group’s product development, which is
included in its consolidated statement of financial position at March 31,
2011 at HK$46.8 million (2010: HK$60.0 million). The project continues
to progress in a satisfactory manner, and customer reaction has
reconfirmed management’s previous estimates of anticipated revenues
from the project. However, increased competitor activity has caused
management to reconsider its assumptions regarding future market
share and anticipated margins on these products. Detailed sensitivity
analysis has been carried out and management is confident that the
carrying amount of the asset will be recovered in full, even if returns
are reduced. This situation will be closely monitored, and adjustments
made in future periods, if future market activity indicates that such
adjustments are appropriate.

Impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. At March 31, 2011, the carrying amount
of goodwill is HK$34.1 million (2010: HK$33.9 million). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 14.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

Income taxes

At March 31, 2011, a deferred tax asset of HK$38.9 million (2010:
HK$38.1 million) in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised on tax losses of HK$699.0 million (2010:
HK$654.1 million) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are less
than expected, a reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal
takes place.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable for goods
sold by the Group to outside customers, net of discounts and sales
related taxes. Turnover represents mainly Oregan Scientific branded
sales (“Branded Sales”) and Original Equipment Manufacturer and
Original Design Manufacturer sales (“OEM/ODM Sales”).

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of products manufactured and provided. For management purposes,
the business of the Group is currently organised under the following
operating divisions which represent the major types of products
manufactured by the Group and are also the Group’s operating
segments.

LCD consumer —
electronic products

design, development, manufacture, and
sales and marketing of LCD consumer
electronic products

Electronic learning —
products

design, development, manufacture,
and sales and marketing of electronic
learning products

Telecommunication, —
digital media and
other consumer
electronic products

design, development, manufacture,
and sales and marketing of
telecommunication, digital media and
other consumer electronic products
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oHER @
Segment revenue and results ’“‘BH&ZA&%%
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by REEIREED T WA REESITAT
operating and reportable segments:
Tele-
communication,
digital media
LCD and other
consumer Electronic consumer
electronic learning electronic
products products products Total
RBEETR BT HERHEAM
ETHEER HEBEER BTHEER ko]
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BERETT BERET BERET AERETT
Year ended March 31, 2011 BE—E——&
ZA=t-HLEE
Segment revenue 2EWA
Branded sales mmfE S & 343.1 284.8 163.8 791.7
OEM/ODM sales RREBEE R RS 515.5 77.0 239.4 831.9
Total segment revenue N 858.6 361.8 403.2 1,623.6
Segment profit (loss) DEB@F (E518) 8.5 (15.1) (7.8) (14.4)
Unallocated income REHEZ A 1.4
Unallocated expense REDBLZ (6.6)
Impairment losses recognised in BRI BEIA
respect of financial instruments ZREER (11.2)
Loss on change in fair value of DERFEEEREZ
financial assets classified MBEEATEEE
as held for trading investment 218 (7.7)
Finance costs &R AR (7.1)
Loss before taxation MR AIEE (45.6)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued) 7 &8 U&A&%%ﬂ(
Tele-
communication,
digital media
LCD and other
consumer Electronic consumer
electronic learning electronic
products products products Total
B 855
RBEETR BT HERHEAM
ETHEER HEBER BTHEER k]
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BERAETT BERET BERET AEAET
Year ended March 31, 2010 BE-ZE-E&
=ZA=+—-HLEE
Segment revenue DA
Branded sales mm S E 344.4 302.0 121.9 768.3
OEM/ODM sales BRI R BB HE 368.1 99.4 159.1 626.6
Total segment revenue S EU AL 712.5 401.4 281.0 1,394.9
Segment profit (loss) HEm I (&EE) 8.0 (50.6) (35.8) (78.4)
Unallocated income RED B2 A 11
Unallocated expense* REH EEZ?Z& * (21.4)
Discount on acquisition of additional &+ 8 A &R (D 2 #r30
interest in a subsidiary 16.3
Finance costs &R AR 9.3)
Loss before taxation BRI EE (91.7)
3 Included in unallocated expense are tax penalty of HK$12.8 million. @ Eki“‘ AEZZHEBEHBIREK 12888
Details are disclosed in note 10(c). o FEBE AR 10() HEE
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from EXFrERE 2 D EBBRARKAINDE P HE B U
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in both years. A R DEEHEE RNEPERBEE ©
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the KEDH 2 St BEREMN A3 ME AN EE 2 &5
Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit (loss) ERAR o 36 A (B8 ) Bl & 5 # AT B ER 2
represents the profit (loss) earned by each segment without allocation a Al (E518) - B B RN BT A ZRES
of impairment losses recognised in respect of financial instruments, loss B OBERBEEERECMBEETEEEZD
on change in fair value of financial assets classified as held for trading Z e BB ARRG 25T - AEHA
investment, discount on acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary, %ﬁ‘“ A BE 2 S A0 A BB AT BB AR K B B AR AN E
interest income, unallocated expense such as central administrative cost DA WAMERFELERARARERSE KL
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Group’s chief RBFTAEIERE 2FTEF ©
operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oHER @
Segment revenue and results (continued) D EBUL A B 348 ()
No segment assets and segment liabilities and other segment EEE"K%@Z”*BQF&E( LA B2 E A 25 56 &
information are presented as such amounts are not reviewed by the WARBAAEEZ FEZLEBRRASHUDEEIR
Group's chief operating decision maker for the purpose of resource NG RBSUNEM A X EHESARER 2 TE
allocation and performance assessment or otherwise regularly provided BERRA E&Iﬁz §|J DHEERDEBEBENU
to the Group's chief operating decision maker. REMDFERZ 5
Other segment information Hitt o H &R
Tele-
communication,
digital media
LCD and other
consumer Electronic consumer
electronic learning electronic Segment Unallocated
products products products total items Total
LR (]
RERER ET RERAM A
ETHEER y2ER ETHEER pasit AMZEE g
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
AEEET AEEET BEEET AEBET AEBET AEBET
Year ended March 31, 2011 BE-Z--F=A=1-HLEE
Amounts included in the measure of AWEFRBETA
segment profit or loss: T3 :
Depreciation and amortisation EREH
— property, plant and equipment — % BERR 307 13.0 13.8 515 41 61.6
— intangible assets —BYEE 9.0 104 115 369 — 369
Impairment losses on trade receivables R REEE 1.1 3.1 0.4 46 — 46
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment ~ HEWE « KB kR G BB 21 18 1.0 49 - 49
Write down of inventories HArE 43 36 21 10.0 — 10.0
Year ended March 31, 2010 HE-Z-ZE-A=t-ALEE
Amounts included in the measure of DRI ET 7N
segment profit or loss: Tl -
Depreciation and amortisation nEREH
— property, plant and equipment — 0% EERZE 305 143 134 58.2 38 62.0
— intangible assets —BYEE 9.2 134 173 399 — 399
Impairment losses on trade receivables W RERE 11 15.0 30 19.1 - 19.1
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment ~ HEWE « KBk E 2 EE 09 05 15 29 — 29
Write down of inventories HAGE 13 100 40 253 - 253
Geographical information & 75 3P

The Group's operations are located in Asia Pacific, Europe and Americas
(representing the United States of America and Latin America). The
Group carries out its manufacturing and trading operations in Hong
Kong and other parts of the PRC. The Group also operates marketing
offices in Europe, the United States of America, Latin America and other
Asia Pacific countries.

IDT International Limited BE B A R A 7

REE 2 EBAN AR - BUM RN (BB R
T EM - EBERTERE MR - AEBEE
SLERETESER - AEBEERBMN  XE - &
TEMREMIEARBERINRA T 5HEERER

Annual Report 2011 £ 3R



SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information (continued)
The Group's revenue from external customers based on the location of
customers are detailed below:

2 EBE R ()
1t B 9 2B (%)
AEBREINRES 2 W5 T IRIE R FE Bl
o FEWET

Revenue from
external customers

REYNEF 2=
2010
HK$'M
kA= R
Americas EM 530.0 434.7
Europe B 745.5 638.8
Asia Pacific ey N 348.1 321.4
1,623.6 1,394.9

Non-current assets of the Group excluding deferred tax assets are
substantially located in the PRC including Hong Kong.

Information about major customers
The Group has a very wide customer base, no single customer
contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for both years.

AEBZIBREREREEEZFRDEERBK
IR B (BIEEE)

FERXFEHR
AEBZEPERER UEE -XPEMESF
EHAREERAEIB10%

6. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

6. HtFERER

2010
HK$'M
B BB
Impairment losses recognised in respect of EHRUBIAL
financial instruments REEE (15.8) (19.1)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - MR REE 2 AR
equipment (4.9) (2.9)
Change in fair value of financial assets SRRFHIEEEREZ
classified as held for trading investment W EENTEZES (7.7) 0.1
Net exchange losses bE 5 B8R E (10.8) (15.9)
(39.2) (37.8)

Included in the net exchange losses and losses arising from changes
in fair value of forward contracts of HK$14.4 million (2010: HK$12.7

million).
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LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

7. BRBAIEE

2010
HK$'M
B RS
Loss before taxation has been arrived B Al B R 2 kR
at after charging: IS
Directors’ remuneration (note 8) B=0E (FFE8) 8.6 95
Retirement benefits scheme contributions for H b8 TRIKRET B
other staff, net of forfeited contributions of HREE 0.3 A BT 2RI ER
HK$0.3 million (2010: HK$2.3 million) (ZE—ZF : B 2388T) 11.7 11.0
Share option benefits expenses for other staff Hih 8 T 7 BARHER R XX 1.0 0.2
Salaries for other staff HEMEBTZ2ITHE 306.2 259.2
Other benefits for staff other than directors BT EMEF  TRIEES 3.5 7.2
Other staff costs HAh B TR 322.4 277.6
Total staff costs 8 TR AR 4a%8 331.0 287.1
Less: Staff costs capitalised in product B BREARNMEERRABKAZ
development costs 8 TR A (15.6) (3.1
Staff costs included in research and BTIRA G AMERRAEER)
development costs (29.6) (12.4)
285.8 271.6
Amortisation of product development costs EE mh R B AN 2 B B
included in research and development costs B EREEFZEER) 36.2 39.2
Amortisation of patents and trademarks included ZFl| & pa1Z 2 & £
in research and development costs B EREEFZEER) 0.7 0.7
Auditors’ remuneration TZER N & 4.7 4.8
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BERERABAX 2 FEKA 1,080.9 878.6
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #3 - R NEREZITE
— held under finance leases — UBHEORE 2 EE 1.3 2.5
— owned by the Group —KREEBEEEE 60.3 59.5
Operating lease rentals in respect of G EFOINE /Y
— office equipment and motor vehicles —WAERERRE 0.9 0.6
— rented premises — HEME 33.0 34,5
Write down of inventories WomFE (B RHEKZR)
(included in cost of goods sold) 10.0 25.3
and after crediting to other income: REFAEMPALT :
Interest income F B UA 1.4 1.1
Sales of moulds and scraps HEEENESE 2.4 13.5
Discount on acquisition of additional XM E A " A 230
interest in a subsidiary — 16.3
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 directors (2010: 7

directors) were as follows:

8. EEME

ENRENT7IER(CE-TF : 7TR)EFEAZ

BT :

Basic  Retirement

salaries benefits
and scheme
Fees allowances contributions Bonus Total
HAH¢ BIRRE
e K28 s EIHR A okl
HK$'M HK$'M HKS$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET AFaEr B¥EExr A¥ET BY%EER
Year ended March 31, 2011 BE-8——&
SA=T-HLEEE
Executive directors: HITESE
Dr. Raymond Chan BIEXEL 0.1 3.4 0.1 — 3.6
Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley BREEL L 0.2 1.7 0.1 — 2.0
Mr. Barry John Buttifant (note) RN E (FiisE) 0.1 1.8 - — 1.9
Independent non-executive directors: B IHTEE :
Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony BRUBESE 0.3 — — — 0.3
Mr. Kao Ying Lun SRR 0.3 — — — 0.3
Mr. Jack Schmuckli Jack Schmuckli %t 4 0.3 — — — 0.3
Dr. Kenichi Ohmae AEF—1E+ 0.2 — — — 0.2
1.5 6.9 0.2 — 8.6
Note: Appointed on July 12, 2010. Mz : R=F—ZEF LA+ -AEZE -
Year ended March 31, 2010 BHE-_Z-ZF
SA=tT-HLEEE
Executive directors: HITESE
Dr. Raymond Chan BRIEXEL 0.2 42 0.2 — 46
Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley BREEEL L 0.2 2.0 0.1 — 23
Dr. Eva Lam (note) MaEEE L (HitE) — 1.0 — 0.5 15
Independent non-executive directors: BV EHTEF -
Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony BRBESE 0.3 — — _ 0.3
Mr. Kao Ying Lun SEBELE 03 — _ _ 0.3
Mr. Jack Schmuckli Jack Schmuckli 5t 4 0.3 — — — 0.3
Dr. Kenichi Ohmae KA —1EL 0.2 — — _ 0.2
1.5 7.2 0.3 0.5 9.5
Note: Resigned on July 16, 2009. Mfizr : RZZFEZNELA+/NBEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR AR ML

For the year ended March 31, 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Bonus is determined with reference to the individual performance
during the year.

None of the directors has waived any emoluments during the year (2010:
nil).

9. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate emoluments of the five highest individuals included two
(2010: two) executive directors of the Company, whose emoluments
are included in note 8 above. The emoluments of the remaining highest
paid individuals are as follows:

EEMME @
ER - REAARBTERA -

BEEENAFEREEAHE(ZF—FF:
&) -

BEME
ARAAERHMESETMARARRANT
EX(CZ—ZF MA) EMSE5R EXH
E8 e KR HMALZMELNT

2010

HK$'M

S EETT

Basic salaries and allowances HEARH 4 KoEAL 7.7 6.7
Bonus 1E4L 0.2 —
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIKREET 2 0.1 0.1
8.0 6.8

Bonus is determined with reference to the individual performance
during the year.

The emoluments of the employees were within the following bands:

FA - KEARBRFERA °

BEZHMEEMT :

Number of employees

BEAE

2010

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,500,001 JT £ 4% 2,000,000 7T — 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 75 2,000,001 JT £ %% 2,500,000 7T — 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 751 2,500,001 JT £ 4% 3,000,000 7T 3 1

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals (including directors and employees) as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office.

86 IDT International Limited BEEEER AT

EMEFERN AREREXIMNETARES
HMER (BREZFIER)ERBFMALEKE
EMARZ M SRR ML Z fES -
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10. TAXATION

10. #IR

2010
HK$'M
EEEET
The charge comprises: X HBIE
Taxation of the Company and its subsidiaries: RNARRENBEARFIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax ARG
— current year —REE (3.0) 4.1
— over(under)provision in prior years —AFEREBRE(TE) 2.0 (46.1)
Taxation in other jurisdictions Efth el AR m 2 BiE
— current year —AREE (0.8) (0.1)
— underprovision in prior years —FEFEERETRE — 9.7)
(1.8) (60.0)
Deferred taxation (note 16) RIERIIE (FEE16)
Current year REE 0.2 (3.3)
(1.6) (63.3)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R IR AR ML

For the year ended March 31, 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HILFE

10. TAXATION (continued)

The charge for the year is reconciled to the loss before taxation as

88

10.

BiIE (@)
REFEHIEL HER B BEEENT

follows:
2010
HK$'M
B RS
Loss before taxation R Al & 18 (45.6) (91.7)
Tax credit at the domestic income tax rate of BAHFTEHE 16.5%
16.5% (2010: 16.5%) (ZZ—TF :16.5%)
FTE 2 BIEE S 7.5 15.1
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for PR 2 B 2
tax purposes (9.2) (15.1)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes /B =R 5 U A 2 i 18 57 2 2.9 2.1
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIABB Z HIETE (13.3) (19.4)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries RE b A AR R AR B A A
operating in other jurisdictions FrR AR E TRz 2 (0.4) 0.1
Income tax on concessionary rates BREBEGTE 2 ABH 1.8 23
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised &) 2 Al R &R R ~ B 18 g5 18 5.9 6.6
Over(under)provision in prior years NEFERERRE(TR) 2.0 (55.8)
Others Hi 1.2 0.8
Tax charge for the year AREEFRESH (1.6) (63.3)

(a)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of estimated
assessable profits for both years. Taxation arising in other
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
jurisdictions.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations in the PRC, certain of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries are entitled to exemption from PRC
income tax for two years commencing from their first profit-
making year of operation and thereafter, these PRC subsidiaries
will be entitled to a 50% relief from PRC income tax for the
following three years (“preferential tax treatment”). According
to the Circular of the State Council on the Implementation of
Transitional Preferential Policies for Enterprise Income Tax (Guofa
2007 No. 39), those entities that previously enjoyed preferential
tax treatment would be granted a five-year transitional period.
The tax exemption and deduction from Foreign Enterprises
Income Tax (“FEIT") for the foreign investment enterprises is still
applicable until the end of the five-year transitional period under
the New Law and will expire in 2012.

IDT International Limited BEEEER AT

() BRNEHRIRZFZihat RPN L
#16.5% 2 B EGHE - A RUERERE 2 B
R ERER AR CBRAREGTHE -

(b) BIKFEARKMBELERFIE) ([
EREEED RERED - BRRART]
By BT N Rl 2 R PTS B R /325% °

BRIEFBER - AEEETHENBAR A
BHEEACEERFERERNF I ERERH
MR EATS R - W HEH 1% = F R % 50%
PEATSR((HREER] - BIREKEE
RE R TS HREEBRBUR AR A (B
%[2007]1395%) - BEZEMBEBENR
AEARFREER IECENIINERSE
RSB ([INESEFRSRL ) ERADAER
HEEFHEARENEFEBRESNERBLER
BR—ZT——F5H -
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10. TAXATION (continued)

()

As disclosed in previous financial statements, protective
assessments (the “Protective Assessments”) totalling
approximately HK$58.6 million relating to years of assessment
from 1997/98 to 2004/05 have been raised by the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department (the “HKIRD") on the Group’s
subsidiaries, challenging the subsidiaries on its position that
its profits were earned offshore and not subjected to tax in
Hong Kong. The subsidiaries lodged objections with the HKIRD
against the Protective Assessments. The HKIRD agreed to hold
over the tax claimed completely provided that the subsidiaries
purchased tax reserve certificates or arranged a bank guarantee.
The directors had been advised by the Company’s tax advisor
that, based on the subsidiaries’ current mode of operations, the
offshore claim should represent a valid case to pursue since the
subsidiaries’ principal business was carried out outside of Hong
Kong and most of its profits were derived outside Hong Kong. As
at March 31, 2009, a tax provision of HK$14.1 million had been
made in the accounts accordingly.

During the year ended March 31, 2010, for the best interest of
the Group, the Group has sought further tax and legal advice,
and based on an evaluation of the applicable tax law by the tax
advisor, the Group has requested the subsidiaries to submit a
settlement proposal to the HKIRD, with a view to settle the tax
assessment dispute. The proposal was accepted by the HKIRD in
June 2010.

In the proposal, whilst the subsidiaries maintained that their
profits were earned offshore and not subjected to tax in Hong
Kong, for settlement purposes, 50% of their operation profits
for the years of assessment 1997/98 to 2008/09 were treated as
profits arising in/derived from Hong Kong and hence chargeable
to profits tax in Hong Kong. An additional tax provision of
HK$47.3 million and tax penalty of HK$12.8 million (included
in general administrative expenses) was made in the accounts
accordingly and this amount was charged to profit or loss for
the year ended March 31, 2010. As a result, the tax reserve
certificates of HK$43.5 million purchased in prior years has been
utilised during the prior year.

Annual Report 2011 &
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()

wmER D BEERBR(EERER ]
7 5= [ Y /B8 2 R PR RO B = A S TR B TS
HRHER  BH- At/ AN
E-TTN T RRBEERELER
SHAR(RELET]) & £LEHE 86
BEL AEEERBTERBRZREME
AR RY - FEREBREEZE
Wz 2B R - MRS D R AR B R
HFMREHRITHER - ARBESEERK
BREEER  REFEMBARREZ
EBER - EXBEBRBEBIAINET R
HIBZHNERBEANEE - R=_FTHh
FZA=+—R0  AEBEERKE T EH
HERAREREE141BET -

BE—ZT-ZF=A=+—HLFE &
TAEBEZ RENRER - AEFEESK
#— W SORREE R MRIBERREA
flz etk AEBERZZHBRREE
BT BER R R W BB IR 2
@ BRBAFRAUS - EEBRBREER
—E-TENARNES -

REHERN - ZEHBRRABHENENE
SNEEMBARBREMTIA - HERER
s BERBE-—AAL/ —AANE
RN CETNARBERE 2 EE R
Z50% « RIERBBELEREBEL R
Mo AREHEATENEY AKEER
fRB R EHREINH IR EIERA7T3AE T
EBEFEE 128 AB T FIR—RITH
Fx) BRARAEABRE-_ZT—TF=
A=+—BUFEZEER - @it BE
FEMBEZHRASBEBSAELER
RERFEEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R IR AR ML

For the year ended March 31, 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HILFE

10. TAXATION (continued)

(d)

During 2010, a subsidiary of the Group received additional
assessments totalling HK$9.2 million relating to years of
assessment 2003, 2005 and 2006 raised by the Inland Revenue
Authority of Singapore (“IRAS") to this subsidiary in relation to
its share buy-backs made in previous years. The Group lodged an
objection on August 17, 2010 against the additional assessments
on the grounds that in substance, the subsidiary did not remit
foreign-source income to Singapore for the relevant years and
should not be assessed on any foreign-source income brought
into Singapore. The Group is awaiting a response from IRAS on
the lodged objection. Notwithstanding the objection, the said
tax of HK$9.2 million was paid to IRAS in January 2010. The
Group provided adequate provision in the consolidated financial
statements during the year ended March 31, 2010.

11. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to
the owners of the Company for the year is based on the following data:

10. BB\ @

(d)

R-ZE-TFERN  AEE—fRHHEARERE
IR R ([ F BT R |) 5% 8
AANBEFEBORG  BH_TT= .
“ETAR_TTRRAMFEZBINFHR
EHREKOQAET - R_Z—ZFFENA
THH - AEBERABREIFHRIELR
% BB RHEB QR LA S TS B RS
ZEE/FBAR c ARBMEFRE R Y
SFMNENBRZDE - BERDRE
EABIREKI2AEBTER T —TF—
AN THMERBR - AEEEREE
TE-EE=A=+HUFEZHEH
BRRIZ MR AR -

11. BEREE

REFARNREBAMEBRERAREFERTS
BTIIBEE

2010
HK$'M
B E ST
Loss: [E518
Loss for the year attributable to owners of RARHEE AFTHEER
the Company and loss for the purposes of UG EGRER REEE
basic and diluted loss per share B8 2 B (49.6) (138.2)
Number of ordinary shares: LRRDEE ¢

2010

Number of ordinary shares for the purposes of
basic and diluted loss per share

1R BB

A E S RER M #EE1E

2,502,271,088 2,502,271,088

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended March
31, 2011 and 2010 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options as the exercise price of those options is
higher than the average market price for shares for both of the years.

a0 IDT International Limited BEEEER AT

AEEE—_T——F=-A=1+—HLEEK_ZT—F
FEZA=+tHUEMEFEZSRESEEIE

By o IR

DR 2 W ARAT IR (T

BERMEAFEZEBERETRERNRDZ
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12. M5 - BERRE

Leasehold Furniture,
land fixtures
and and Motor Plantand  Construction
buildings equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
BA BERE
THRET RERRE "E RHR ERIE ng
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BERET BERET BERET BEBET BERET BERET
COST OR VALUATION ﬁSiZMEjHEfE
At April 1, 2009 “TTNEMA-A 53.0 3276 73 2993 - 687.2
Currency realignment [Rﬁ%é — 3.0 0.1 — — 3.1
Additions NE — 10.1 — 55 03 15.9
Disposals & — (18.1) (0.3) (102) — (28.6)
At March 31, 2010 RZZ-ZF=A=1—H 53.0 322.6 7.1 294.6 0.3 677.6
Currency realignment i 5 % — 35 0.1 — — 36
Additions NE — 14.9 0.3 12.6 03 28.1
Transfer i — 0.5 — — (0.5) —
Disposals il (1.6) (12.2) (0.4) 2.7) - (16.9)
At March 31, 2011 RZE——F=fR=1+—H 514 329.3 7.1 304.5 0.1 692.4
Comprising: B
At cost R AME 16.6 3293 7.1 3045 0.1 657.6
At valuation ZihE
— 1993 ——N=E 26.7 — — — — 26.7
— 1994 ——NNmE 8.1 — — — — 8.1
514 3293 7.1 304.5 0.1 692.4
DEPRECIATION }ﬁ%
At April 1, 2009 “TTNEMA-A 23 2153 5.2 24.7 - 467.5
Currency realignment [ﬁﬁ?é — 19 — — — 1.9
Provided for the year AEEREE 1.8 394 06 20.2 — 62.0
Eliminated on disposals HERHEH = (15.8) 03 (8.8) = (24.9)
At March 31, 2010 RZF-SF=R=1—-H 24.1 240.8 55 236.1 — 506.5
Currency realignment [ 5 — 31 0.1 — — 32
Provided for the year REEEE 1.6 392 06 20.2 — 61.6
Eliminated on disposals HERHEH 03) 8.6) 04 (2.5) — (11.8)
At March 31, 2011 W-_E——%=fA=1+-H 254 274.5 5.8 253.8 — 559.5
CARRYING VALUES &EE{E
At March 31, 2011 W=E-——%=fA=+—H 26.0 54.8 13 50.7 0.1 132.9
At March 31, 2010 e e 289 81.8 16 58.5 03 171.1
At April 1, 2009 R=ZZNFNA—H 307 1123 2.1 74.6 — 2197
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R IR AR ML

For the year ended March 31, 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HILFE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12. Y%  BERZE@®
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and ME - WRNBREHAEGSE  BEET T BELS
equipment, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line FHRITER S - DUEERA -  BEZIERWT ¢

92

method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and building Over the shorter of the term of HE T REF FTAE A 25F » LA
the lease, or 25 years &AM

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% - 25% R - B KRR 10% —25%

Motor vehicles 10% — 20% AE 10% —20%

Plant and machinery 10% — 50% R 5 7% 8 M i 2R 10% —50%

The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at GE T AESH LI E AN EEERERT - (&

each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for S E) S S IRTAL IR Y AR o

on a prospective basis.

The carrying values of the Group'’s property interests comprise: REE Y RS EmE T

3.31.2011 3.31.2010 4.1.2009
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BREEER BEBET AEBETT

Properties held under medium-term RRHBNNESIEE

leases in Hong Kong ZE 26.0 27.6 293
Property held under a long-term REABNNFERFE

lease in the PRC 2 — 1.3 1.4

26.0 28.9 30.7

If the Group’s land and buildings had not been revalued, the carrying WMASKEZ T REFARABEM - AREEAS
value of land and buildings would have been HK$8.9 million (2010: BSIBEEBIL(ZE—ZF : A% 106EET) °
HK$10.6 million).
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of property, plant RmEMEER - UBBHANTE 2 - e
and equipment held under finance leases was HK$5.0 million (2010: BEZREBERBBS0EEL(ZE—ZF
HK$7.5 million). B T5EETT) ©
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13. BF&EE

Product
development Patents and
costs trademarks Total
B m A s R A EfRER HBE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BERSTT BEEETT B BHETT
COST RSB
At April 1, 2009 RZZEZTNFEMA—H 383.4 8.2 391.6
Additions INE 20.5 0.6 21.1
At March 31, 2010 R-Z—ZFF=A=+—H 403.9 8.8 412.7
Additions NE 22.9 0.8 23.7
At March 31, 2011 R=m—=—0= F == 426.8 9.6 436.4
AMORTISATION #ey
At April 1, 2009 WZZEZTHhENA—R 309.0 38 312.8
Amortised for the year IR [ g 39.2 0.7 39.9
At March 31, 2010 RZE—ZTF=R=+—H 348.2 4.5 352.7
Amortised for the year IR g 36.2 0.7 36.9
At March 31, 2011 R-ZE——F=A=+—H 384.4 5.2 389.6
CARRYING VALUES BRE{E
At March 31, 2011 R-E——F=FA=+—H 42.4 4.4 46.8
At March 31, 2010 RZE—ZEF=F=+—H 55.7 4.3 60.0
At April 1, 2009 RZZEZAFEMA—H 74.4 4.4 78.8

The above intangible assets, which have finite useful lives, are amortised N rEFEEZAIBFEAR - Tk AT HIRE LA

on a straight line basis over the following periods: B AREESY

Product development cost 2 years E AR 2%

Patents and trademarks 10 years R REE 104
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BB R M

For the year ended March 31, 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HILFE

14. GOODWILL 14. BE

HK$'M

BEBETT

At April 1, 2009 R-ZETHEMA—H 34.0
Currency realignment bE 5 FH R (0.1)

At March 31, 2010 R-E—ZFF=A=+—H 33.9
Currency realignment PE 3 FA =& 0.2

At March 31, 2011 R-_E——F=HA=+—H 34.1

94

For the purpose of impairment review, goodwill set out above is
allocated to two individual cash generating units (“CGUs"): LCD

SUBEREME - EFIEEITDE T MEEL 2
BIREA(TRIREMN]) : RRBEATEFHEE

consumer electronic products unit and telecommunications products, mEMLENER  BBERERRAMETFE
digital media products and other electronic products unit. mEAL
The carrying amount of goodwill as at March 31, 2011 allocated to AER_E——F=A=+—HBZEREESET
these units are as follows: ZEBRZERIAT
HK$'M
B RS
LCD consumer electronic products unit (“CGU A”) REEENETHBEMSBM ([RIRELF]) 17.8
Telecommunications products, digital media products and & EES - %(E@%‘ﬁ“:iuu MEME T HEEMR
other consumer electronic products unit (“CGU B") B ([BITRER L)) 16.3
34.1

During the year ended March 31, 2011, management of the Group
determines that there are no impairments of any of its CGUs containing
goodwill.

The recoverable amounts of the CGU A and CGU B have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management for the next year and for the following four years based
on a steady growth rate of 10% per annum. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using zero growth rate. Management
estimates discount rate of 6% (2010: 8%) for both the CGUs using
a risk-free rate, the market return and company specific factors. The
key assumptions are based on the estimation on the historical annual
growth rates of respective CGU and relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. Changes in the selling prices and direct costs are based
on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of
both CGUs to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of respective
CGUs.

IDT International Limited BE B A R A 7

BE_Z——F=A=1+—HUFE r&EHEZ
EEERELESHEZARELPEHIVRE

REBREBEMFHEAIREN 2 2 rJ Ol S EE RIRE
REEEEMETE - ZitEER EARERE
ERBH R RERARRUEHBRERROE
EREFEH - BREIBELEE10% © RKRA
FRZASHMEBANATIERMEE - EREAER
Al - misER kA Rz ABERRGEG S E
ZEBEE6% (ZF—FF :8%) ' WIHRESR
A RIIZR BB (L B 2R 2 SRR R R [ 17 SRR R FROAI A
o mIRABHITEATFREERE - EE
B E B AN 2 B E) JHARIR LA E 2 B I R R R T
BEFHREMSE - BRERREEMNRR
ZABAREEE - B2 EK M ERIIRE R 2
SREAREBHHAIREMN 2 RO A S -

Annual Report 2011 3R



15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

15. AIEHBERE

2010
HK$'M
AERETT

Unlisted securities JEETESH
— Equity securities at cost — BAFHAA

0.4 —

The above unlisted investments represent a 1.46% equity investments
in a private entity that was established in the Korea. They are measured
at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.

16. DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
reporting periods:

A EE EIRERNERK ZTLAER21.46%
BAKRE - ZFREUKARERRENEER
ZBEFE - THERGEEAFEE 2 HER
R HARBEZRRAHEERER SR

16. IEFEHIR

TREFINA RS RSB E RS RS ER
TEREHAREEEERALES)

Accelerated Product Revaluation Unrealised
tax development of Tax  profitson
depreciation costs  properties losses  inventories Total
il Efm FEZ
BEHE BRHRA WEER REBE AREREA Eax
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBEr A¥EEx A%AET B%aEn A%eEn  A¥EER
At April 1, 2009 RZETNERA—-A (5.9 (6.5 (5.6) 325 136 28.1
Currency realignment EXHE — — — 0.1 — 0.1
Credit (charge) to profit or AEERGA (k) B
loss for the year 34 14 — 2.8) (5.3) (33)
At March 31, 2010 RZB-ZF=A=1—H (2.5 (5.1) (5.6) 29.8 83 249
Currency realignment [ R — — — 0.7 — 0.7
(Charge) credit to profit or AEERANG) T ABRE
loss for the year 1.9 0.2 — — (1.9 0.2
At March 31, 2011 R-F——F=A=1—H (0.6) (4.9 (5.6) 30.5 6.4 258
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR AR ML

For the year ended March 31, 2011 HE=—ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

16. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

16

. EERIE @)

BTSSR BB T

3.31.2011 3.31.2010 4.1.2009

HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BEHET BB HET SR E BT

Deferred tax assets R IEE E 38.9 38.1 45.8
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIBEEE (13.1) (13.2) (17.7)
25.8 249 28.1

By reference to financial budgets, management believes that there will
be sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences available in
the future for the realisation of the deferred tax assets.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised tax losses
of HK$883.8 million (2010: HK$834.7 million) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$184.8 million (2010: HK$180.6 million) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$699.0 million (2010: HK$654.1 million) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in the unrecognised tax losses are
losses of HK$16.5 million (2010: HK$27.9 million expire in the years
of 2010 to 2015) that will expire in the years of 2011 to 2015. Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

ERE2ERVBEER  HEKBRAZARK
a8 A AR A B AR B B = R A (ERE IR A
EEH -

RFEHEER - AEBE SRS BAHREEES
#8838 EBIL(ZT—TF : B84 7EET)
AIHEEEERR  EFEBK1848EET(Z
T2 B1806 A BT DR AELERIE
BE o RN REERETERICEFI AR - R T B
699.0 BB IL(=ZZT—ZF : Bk 6541 5E L)
BHERBELCTHIBEE - AEATIBEEBERES
N-E——FE T REHPIS EEEE
165BBIL(ZT—ZF : ¥ 2798 ELERN
—TZTEE T -RAFHBEE) o B
PR HA LTS o

17. INVENTORIES 17. 78
3.31.2011 3.31.2010 4.1.2009
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BEAEET BEEET
Raw materials FEx 112.9 71.8 65.9
Work in progress EES, 14.7 12.3 4.2
Finished goods RURK o 168.1 123.2 179.0
295.7 207.3 249.1
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance
for doubtful debts) presented based on the invoice date at the reporting

FE W R R R L At FE W R IR

R|EZE B NBRRERE 2B 2R IRRIRE
ERHZNNZRESITAT -

date.
3.31.2011 3.31.2010 4.1.2009
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEERT BEEETT B HETT
0 to 30 days OHZ=30H 112.8 132.5 125.0
31 to 90 days 31HZ90H 52.5 39.6 37.3
Over 90 days 90 HIA 26.9 47.8 63.4
Trade receivables B SRR 192.2 219.9 225.7
Other receivables H fih fE W kI8 72.4 54.9 80.6
Total trade and other receivables B 5 RE M EWER R Aa%E 264.6 274.8 306.3

The Group allows its trade customers a credit period normally ranging
from letter of credit at sight to 90 days open account to customers with
long business relationship and strong financial position.

The Group’s management closely monitors the credit quality of trade
receivables and considers the trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired to be of a good credit quality based on the good payment
history of the related debtors from historical experience. Based on
the payment pattern of the customers of the Group, trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired are generally collectible. Included
in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$43.9 million (2010: HK$60.3 million) which are
past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss as the directors assessed that the balances will be
recovered based on their settlement records. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The average age of these receivables
is 43.2 days (2010: 79.7 days).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

AEBETEIER 2 EEH—RbAERMED
NEfs T EAEEZTRAEBEE NI BT
REZEFHREHIOATE -

ANEFEBBEYERBRERZEEEE I
RAEBBATTHRBBESAZRIFERDE
B I 3R A 3 2 8 2 B R R (B 2 e WK BR 7K B R 1T =
BEEE - REALBRE 2NHERX - 2@HE
KMEZERER RS A AKE - RIEBE
Whek BT THRECAH 2 EKRERES
AT LAUEl - Eit - sFARSEE 2 B SRR KA
B AREAE BB B M A £ E Y SRR EE
B EYIRFAREEA 8843988 T(=
T—TF : 603FHEL) AEBWERZETEH
BHATEE - 2 SRWERR 2 FHREK 5432
B(ZZ—Z=4:79.7H) °

EBMERREZE SRR ZRE

2010

HK$'M

BEEET

Overdue less than 30 days BE30HA 22.3 17.0
Overdue 31 to 90 days #HEI31 HE90 H 2.8 10.8
Overdue more than 90 days #HEF90 H M £ 18.8 32.5
43.9 60.3

The Group will normally provide fully for all receivables overdue 90
days because historical experiences are such that receivables that
are past due 90 days are generally not recoverable, except for some
major customers with longer credit terms at the discretion of senior
management.

Annual Report 2011 &

RBBAELS - BH90 B Z EUIRFUE R SRR
m - B AEESERSMABI0 B L E
WERFIELEE R TEEHARRZEERP
A=A EEERIBERE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR AR ML

For the year ended March 31, 2011 #Z2=—F——F=A=+—HILFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. FEUNBR 7N & H b FE U FR I8 ()
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade receivables: FEUBR N RBR 1 2
2010
HK$'M
ok A=R=
Balance at beginning of the year FH LR 19.0 1.3
Impairment losses recognised in respect of B HERERIRI 2 BEERE
trade receivables 4.6 19.1
Amount written off as uncollectible WsE AT Uk B 2 ZREE (1.3) (1.4)
Balance at end of the year FIREERH 22.3 19.0

The balance of the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables which have been overdue 90 days and/
or have no material transactions with the Group during the year. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The fair value of the Group's trade and other receivables at March 31,
2011 approximates the corresponding carrying amount.

Included in trade and other receivables are the following amounts
denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the
group entities to which they relate:

EER - RRBEGRBERRERD B0 A
o/ REREBRWHEERNRZ H 2 KRR - A&
[ 3 % A AR A (R o

AEBER-_ZE——F=A=1T—H2RIEKRFR
H b el I8 2 A TEE R 2 BREERE °

R W R R e L A [ MR IR B4R TSI AR R B ]
2R EB AN 2 B EEZHOA

2010

HK$'M

ok A=R=

usD Ev 99.6 102.0
Renminbi AREE 1.7 2.4

Euro [&) 28 7.0 6.8
108.3 111.2
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19.

20.

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENT

At March 31, 2011, the held for trading investment represents an
investment in equity securities listed in Hong Kong. During the year,
trading in the shares of the listed entity was suspended. The Group
has recognised a fair value loss of HK$7.7 million (2010: fair value
gain of HK$0.1 million based on bid prices quoted on the Stock
Exchange) based on the quoted price of the listed security at the date
of suspension.

Subsequent to the date of suspension, the directors consider that the
fair value of the listed security cannot be measured reliably because
it is not apparent in the active market. As a result, the Group has set
the quoted price of the listed security at the date of suspension as the
deemed cost and has measured the investment at cost less identified
impairment loss. At March 31, 2011, the listed security is still under
suspension and the resumption conditions have not been clarified. The
directors assessed impairment and recognised an impairment loss of
HK$11.2 million (2010: nil).

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

Short-term bank deposits bear an average effective interest rate of
0.49% per annum have a maturity of four to six months and are
denominated in United States Dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong
Dollars. Included in the amount is HK$35.0 million which the Group has
undertaken to maintain for a short term loan facility granted by a bank.

Bank balances and cash which comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less are at prevailing market interest rates in the range of 0.1% to 2.35%
(2010: 0.1% to 1.0%) per annum.

The fair value of the Group’s short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash at March 31, 2011 approximates the corresponding carrying
amount.

Included in short-term bank deposits and bank balances and cash
are the following amounts denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they relate:

19.

20.

HEEERE
R-B——F=A=+—R0  HEEEREER
BB LMIBRARHRE - FN > ZLMERZ
BROBEEFEEE - AEEERZ LTRESEEEER
BzHRERRAATEEEREE77TABT(ZE
—ZF  RPEERARER 0.1 BEITYIRER
REF#RZ EAEBRE) ©

REEEEAR BRNERMSLTHNA %
RBEEA R E EHES 2 ATEE - Bt
AEBE EMREFNEEEERZRERKA -
WERRAREE #B 2R EEBEFTEZAERE -
RZB——F=A=+—0 LHRHNAEE
BER G AR - EFEFTERERERR
EEREEN2BBL(ZZ—2F &) -

BHRETER RTEHRRAES

RERTERIIZFOERFEME049ERTE
W MZE < E A BB RIAET - AR KRBT
8- HB%35.0 8T A& BBl AEEGRTT
B2 R B R E M AR R 2 508 ©

RITEBREBSPEASEEFE 2H ¢ ME MR
TEF BEERZEIHPBEE=EAKMNAT
RBIMESHERAE  FRENT01EE2.35
BE(ZZ—ZF:01EBE10E) -

AEER-_ZE——F=A=T—HZEHRTHEF
FARRITERRIRE 2 A FEEREEZRE
B85 -

RHSRT I RARRITESH MRS B4 T 5 A
MEBEER 2 ER N EEFHEZ A

2010
HK$'M
BEEET

usD =TT
Renminbi AR
Euro (G
GBP HEEE

206.5
75.0
7.8 2.3
3.2 17.8

541.0
15.4

292.5 576.5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R IR AR ML

For the year ended March 31, 2011 #Z2=—F——F=A=+—HILFE

21.

22.

100

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

21.

BAERRREMEASRERAREN

RBEPRAEAZESRNERRERAHZ
S 2 BRI DA T

3.31.2011 3.31.2010 4.1.2009

HKS$'M HKS$'M HK$'M

BEEERT BEEET BERET

0 to 30 days 0HZzZ30H 77.5 37.2 34.2
31 to 90 days 31HZ90H 22.6 42.9 329
Over 90 days 90 HIA 14.5 12.6 223
Trade payables B S RENERR 114.6 92.7 89.4
Other payables and accruals HibENZRIBERTERER 158.4 157.1 130.5
Total trade and other payables and B 5 REAMERRR R

accruals TEIREResE 273.0 249.8 219.9

Included in trade and other payables are the following amounts
denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the
group entities to which they relate:

I UM BEFHE Z TRIA

2010
HK$'M

B EHE T

usD e 49.3 38.4
Renminbi AR 27.0 21.2
Euro [&) 78 2.4 2.0
GBP HgE 0.1 0.1
78.8 61.7

BILLS PAYABLE

The bills payables are aged within 3 months for both years. The fair
values of the Group’s bills payables at March 31, 2011 approximate
their corresponding carrying amounts.

IDT International Limited BEEIFRAR A 7

22,

AN

EMEFERN - BNEEZERRGE=1EA X
NeRZB-——F=A=+—H AEHENE
Bz AFEEERERRRERS
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23. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

23. BIBEBENER

The Group lease certain of its fixtures and equipment under finance AEBUGBHANEES TES K& - HEN
leases. The lease term ranges from 2 to 5 years. Interest rates underlying F2E5F - FiEMBHALNESE 2 HEFETIRE
all obligations under finance leases are fixed at respective contract dates BETX B BRI ERTEESETSE - FRAHEA TR
and range from 7% to 8%. These leases have no terms of renewal or BIHEGE  TEBAEZEERARHES 2 &K -
purchase options and escalation clauses. No arrangements have been A 4% 53t Sk AT KT FRET SLAE A 28 »

entered into for contingent rental payments.

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
RIEBELAK REHENNRZRE

2010 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BEEET

Amount payable under ARAR B TS FH 40 FE A1
finance leases: ZEREE
Within one year —F 7N 0.1 1.5 0.1 1.4
Between one to two years —FEMF2HE 0.1 — 0.1 —
0.2 1.5 0.2 1.4

Less: Future finance charges B RIRBI TS E A — (0.1) — —
Present value of lease obligations AHOEHZRE 0.2 1.4 0.2 1.4
Less: Amount due within B AR —FAER

one year shown under My AREN A &

current liabilities ¢ (0.1) (1.4)
Amount due after one year AR —FREE 285 0.1 —
The fair value of the Group's finance lease obligations determined AEEPBAOEB 2 A FEEIARESBHEE
based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows BA2@IMENE  BEstRERSTERE
discounted using the prevailing market rate at the end of the reporting HrBEEMETE -  AEBPKBOEE S AFE

period approximates to their carrying amount.

Annual Report 2011 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended March 31, 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HILFE

24.

102

FORWARD CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES

24, BEHIANEE BB

3.31.2011 3.31.2010 4.1.2009
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BREHER BEEET ABEBETT

Forward foreign exchange contracts RHEBINEA 4
— Derivative financial assets — TEMKEE — 0.1 —
— Derivative financial liabilities — PTEMEERE (12.4) = (4.4)
(12.4) 0.1 (4.4)

In the current year, the Group has used currency derivatives to hedge
significant future transactions and cash flows. The Group is a party
to a variety of foreign currency forward contracts in the management
of its foreign exchange rate exposures. The instruments purchased
are primarily denominated in the currencies of the Group’s principal
markets.

The ranges of the total nominal amounts of the outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts to which the Group is committed at the end
of the reporting periods are as follows:

At March 31, 2011 R=-Z——F=HA=+-—8H
Notional amount Maturity
EESH A

RAFE  AEBUEBTETARAEEZR
RRGRBEREBETE R - AEBFT TR Z
REINES LA ERERRR - FIBAZTAE
EUARERFEEMISNEEEE -

BAE BT M DARS B2 ZHSMNES DRI E
HEEH 2 AEESENEENT

Exchange rates

E=

Sell EURO500,000/EURO1,000,000  Range from May 20, 2011 to
Ji i 500,000 BX Z& 1,000,000 BX 28 February 24, 2012
— T__iﬂﬂ ez
——FZAZ=+MAHM

Sell GBP300,000/GBP500,000 June 7, 2011 and July 5, 2011
i 300,000 548,500,000 548 —T——FALA K
—T——%+AAAH

IDT International Limited B EEER A F

USD/EURO range from 1.4064 to 1.4174
o0/ BREE 1.4064 = 1.4174

USD/EURO 1.1624 and 1.6117
E7t/ BE1.1624 % 1.6117
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24. FORWARD CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(continued)

At March 31, 2011 R-ZB——%=H=+—H
Notional amount Maturity
HESH A

24. BEHEHNEE BEw

Exchange rates

E=

Sell EURO100,000/EURO200,000 Monthly from August 16, 2010 to
Ji i 100,000 EXZE 200,000 [ 78 July 15, 2011
FARZZE—ZTFNA+ABE
—E——FtA+AH

Sell EURO200,000/EURO400,000 Monthly from October 29, 2010 to

Ji 1 200,000 X 78,400,000 X 72 September 20, 2011
BRAAZZE—ZEFTAZ+ARAZE
—=2—FNA=+H

Annual Report 2011 &

(i) Entity will sell EURO100,000 for USD at
forward rate at 1.34 on settlement date, if
spot rate is less than or equals to forward
rate.
iR B E R DR E R R HER - B8
48 B iR BE 2 1.34 1§ 100,000 BLZE 5,18
ABZETT °

(i) Entity will sell EURO200,000 for USD at
forward rate of 1.34 on settlement date, if
spot rate is greater than forward rate.
MREEXRSHNEHRER  EBRENEEB
23R HADE 3 1.3415200,00080 28 X AT ©

(iii)  Entity will knock-out when In The Money
("ITM") Intrinsic value is greater or equals to
0.2.
EEN(EBRDREEESNHERO0.2

BRI IL AR5

X

(i) Entity has no payment obligation if:
—  spot rate is less than the lower barrier
at 1.25; or
— upper barrier rate at 1.33 is less than
spot rate and knock in rate at 1.36.
BRI ENRE EH
REERDNTRER125 " %
—  LEREX133DRBEERXHASE
£51.36°
(i) Entity will sell EURO200,000 for USD at spot
rate +0.03, if lower barrier is less than spot
rate and upper barrier at 1.33.
i TIREXENFEEXRM FREXS
1.33 - BRI EEX+0.031200,000
BREHMGET
(iii)  Entity will sell EURO400,000 for USD at 1.33,
if spot rate is greater than knock in rate at
1.36.
IR EERGRASER1.36 - EBFR
1.33 % 400,000 B Z& 32 AT
(iv)  Entity will knock-out when ITM Event occurs
for 6 times.

BEEAFHEENR  ERHES LaEHS -

\

il

o\
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For the year ended March 31, 2011 HEZE=ZT——F=A=+—HI-FE

24. FORWARD CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES

104

(continued)

At March 31, 2011

Notional amount

HESH#E

R-ZE——%=A=t+—H

Maturity
FHA

24,

RPENEE BfF@W

Exchange rates

E=

Sell EURO200,000/EURO400,000
S 200,000 B 28 400,000 L 22

At March 31, 2010

Notional amount

HESH

Monthly from October 27, 2010 to
September 26, 2011

BABHZZE—ZF+HA=T+HZE
—T——FNAZ+RH

R=B—FF=HA=+—8H

Maturity
EHH

0

(ii)

(iii)

Entity will sell EURO200,000 for USD at
forward rate at 1.347 on settlement date, if
spot rate is less than or equals to forward rate
at 1.347.

MR EEXRDRYENRIEX 1347 - B
BB A B B HRu BRTE % 1,347 1 200,000
BREHMGETT o

Entity will sell EURO400,000 for USD at
forward rate at 1.347 on settlement date, if
spot rate is greater than forward rate at 1.347.
MR EERSREIER1.347 - BEERN
K8 A s BAE =R 1.347 1 400,000 BL 72 5,
BRET -

Entity will knock-out when ITM Intrinsic value
is greater or equals to 0.2.
EEAANEEERNSHER0.2
IFEREES o

EREE

Exchange rates

E=

Sell EURO1,000,000
Y& 1,000,000 [ER 28

September 30, 2011
—T——FNA=+A

The above foreign exchange contracts will be settled in net amount on

maturity date.

At March 31, 2011, the fair value of the Group’s currency derivatives is
estimated to be forward contract liabilities of HK$12.4 million (2010:
forward contract assets of HK$0.1 million).

During the year, losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
Group's currency derivatives amounting to HK$14.4 million (2010:
losses arising from changes in fair value of forward contracts amounting
to HK$12.7 million) have been recognised in profit or loss in the year.

IDT International Limited BEEIFRAR A 7

USD/EURO 1.3475
=7t/ B 1.3475

LA ESMESLINEIER B G LAFREAEH -
N_ZE——4& E =t+—B AEEZE¥ETE
TEARHEHNABZAFATEEREK 124
BELT(ZZ— 7$- REAHNEERBKA
BT °

FR AEBEETAETERAFEELEEES
BEI144ABBT(ZE—FF  RREHNZAT
BEEZHEEABE 12788T) EREAFEZ
?Eﬁﬁﬁgﬁ/m
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25. BANK LOANS

25. SRITER

3.31.2011 3.31.2010 4.1.2009
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BEEET AEBRETT
(Restated)
(& =E51)
Bank loans RITER 305.9 373.8 330.6
Bank overdrafts RITEX 5.8 6.7 18.6
311.7 380.5 349.2
Carrying amount repayable within one year* BN —FRN(EE Z RS * 65.8 6.7 64.2
Carrying amount of bank loans that are ARBEORAE AR —FA
repayable within one year from the end of ~ [EEEH A AR ZR(EE
the reporting period but contain a repayment 1%%}’((@]7%,,@))%@)2
on demand clause (shown under current RITERRAE
liabilities) 141.8 185.1 285.0
Carrying amount of bank loans that are not /AR R4 MRS 455 B 25+
repayable within one year from the end of —FREEEFHHAIREK
the reporting period but contain a repayment EEEH G ARBEE) 2
on demand clause (shown under current RITERRAE
liabilities) 104.1 188.7 —
3117 3805 3492
Less: Amount due within one year shown W I ERBAGBZER—F
under current liabilities AEEZA (311.7) (380.5) (349.2)

* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in loan
agreements.

The bank loans and bank overdrafts are unsecured and denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars, the functional currency of the relevant group
entities. They carry interest rate at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
plus 0.9% to 2.5% (2010: 0.9% to 2.5%) per annum. The fair value of
the bank loans approximates the corresponding carrying amount.

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest
rates) on the bank loans ranged from 1.09% to 2.90% (2010: 0.85%
to 2.67%). The bank overdrafts carry interest rate ranging from 1.17%
10 3.68% (2010: 1.14% to 3.43%) per annum.

Annual Report 2011 &

* REARB R ZENE R G EA L TAEEE
BB AR -

ERARITERRBTE S BEEE R BB LTS
EHEEERE 2 NEEEAE - BERTERR
RITE T IRBBRITEZEFREMOIERZ25E(Z
T—Z2F :09EE25F) 2FMNEGFE - IR1TE
R AT EERBRERRERS

BERABRITERZERFE (TMEERFTHFE) N
F109EE20E(ZE—T 4 : 085F1267
B) - RITBEITENT1.17EE368E(ZF—
FV14EE3.43F) 2FFIEFE -
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26.

27.

106

SHARE CAPITAL &N
Number of
shares Amount
RHO#E x|
HK$'M
BEBEET
Authorised: iiHﬁK :
At April 1, 2009, March 31, 2010 and RZZETAFMA—H -
March 31, 2011 —T-TF=A=+—H
MZZT——F=A=+—H
— ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each — EREEBK0.10 T2 @R N 3,500,000,000 350.0
— ordinary shares of US$0.10 each — BREEO0.10E T2 HEBRH 10,000 —
Issued and fully paid: E%‘é”&%’&ﬂ%zﬁ :
At April 1, 2009, March 31, 2010 and _ggﬂfﬁﬂﬁ H -
March 31, 2011 —Z2F=R=+—H
r—ZE——F=A=+—H
— ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each — BREEEK0.10m 2 EBRHm 2,502,271,088 250.2
No dividend was paid or proposed for both of the years, nor has any NREEE  HERNSESRMEERE RS
dividend been proposed since the ending of the reporting period. HEE BT EEHRARE -
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 27. BRETE
The Group offers share options to attract, motivate and retain key AREEEEIRRELARS| - B i i A & [F 1%

employees who contribute to the growth of the Group. At the special
general meeting held on August 28, 2002, the Company adopted a
share option scheme (2002 IDT International Option Scheme”).

The terms of the option scheme is described below:

2002 IDT International Option Scheme

The 2002 IDT International Option Scheme was adopted on August 28,
2002 and will continue in operation for a maximum of ten years from
such date.

Pursuant to this scheme, the board of directors of the Company
offered to grant options to selected eligible participants, including full-
time employees and full-time executive directors of the Company or
employees or any of its subsidiaries.

At March 31, 2011, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under this scheme was
76,456,000 (2010: 25,556,000), representing 3.1% (2010: 1.0%) of
the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

IDT International Limited BEEIFRAR A 7

RIFHERMZEZEE - ARFAR-_ZFEZT_F)N
A *-H\ B 81T 2 BRRFBIAS CR AR BT
2 (T2 _FEHBERERETS ) -

BB &) 2 Rk E R T

:gi—iﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%*‘h]
—EE_FERERBEEFIN _FT_FN
AZ T N\BERA - WENZAEERERER
EE e

RBULF S KRR EEE AR “*ZAQ%Q
HLEE ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂx% I FELEETTURRR

ZEBEELAEBATES  FEEAMBER
ZIEg -

RZE——F=A=+—H8' ' BRELKFAIER
LD RITEZ EBREMS R ZKRHOEE B
76,456,000 % (== —=Z 4 : 25,556,000 %) * 8
ERARARE B ZEBETRNAN3.1% (ZF—
TE 10%) °
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2002 IDT International Option Scheme (continued)

The limit on the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2002 IDT International Option Scheme, together with all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company, must not exceed 30% of the
number of the Company’s issued shares from time to time. Subject
always to the aforesaid overall 30% limit, the total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted,
together with all options to be granted under other share option
scheme(s) of the Company, must not exceed 207,179,540 shares,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
August 28, 2002, the adoption date of the 2002 IDT International
Option Scheme. Such 10% limit may be refreshed or exceeded if
approved by shareholders in general meeting subject always to the
aforesaid overall 30% limit.

The total number of the Company’s shares issued and which may
be issued upon exercise of all options granted to a participant in any
12-month period immediately preceding the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue as at date of such grant.
If the grant of options is offered to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company or any of their
respective associates, the total number of the Company’s shares issued
and which may be issued to such participant upon exercise of all
options granted in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of grant shall not exceed 0.1% of the number of shares then in issue
and having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000.

The subscription price for an option granted under the 2002 IDT
International Option Scheme shall be the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

The vesting period of the share option is from the date of grant until
the commencement of the exercise period.

An offer for grant of an option under this scheme must be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, and HK$1 is payable as
consideration on acceptance. An option shall be exercisable during the
period as determined by the board of directors of the Company or its
authorised committee, which shall commence on a date after the expiry
of a 6-month period after the date of grant and not exceed 10 years
from the date of such grant.

Annual Report 2011 &

27.

IDT International Limited EREFRE R A T

BT E )

—EECFERBRBRES @
HTERE—TT —F & B EARES Bl
BRARITRZAEEETHERE  URBEAR
AR BB R R B RARTTRZARE
BAET Al pE BT 2 IR in AR BN - & Z ABBIBAR
AEFRZBEITROBE 230% - ERHZIX EX
Pt B2 RE 30% RAERHIT - RITEMARKEEZ
fERRE - URREBA R B E MBS B XH
ZIERBREM AR EIT RN A TREE
207,179,540 g fifn - A RRIR—FZE—F)\A
“+NREI=ZEE BRI BEBREE 25K
MBH) ZBEBETRAEZ10% ° MERRPIRR
REHAE » % 10% REEA] TR # kAR B B4
PR ER AV BB ARRE - MERY 2R | PR B B8 30% fR 78
PR -

REER B B ER+ @A BE - BiTER
FAEM—R2EEZ A BIREMEIT RS
TZARERDEE - NMEBBRLERES A
ZEETROEE Z21% - WERARR 2 EER
REBILIFATETRRESB ZEMBEAL
BERTERE  AREEREBHA(BEZA)
IEER+—EABE - BITRER T ZREBR
RFBEITRARET TRE2EE 2 RRRRG
BY - TREBEREREZETRNHKEB01% A&
{ENS#8:B/E % 5,000,000 7T -

BRE_ZFZ_FERABEBRES IR ZBR
BZABERERTIRSE  OAREAENHR
R BB WTE ) RN EER G BT
fAEXH 2 FRHE - Ri) Rz EE -

BREZSBHORE B SMRG  BEETESE
AL o

RIBUFH BB 2 BARE VAN B4 B A
FT28 AR - AN RSB 1 TTiE
RAE - BREARARRAIEEFGREEREL
ZEeMEE 2 BEATIAITE - BNhaRE B H
&INME A BEEmE ARG - 2R A e
TERERM

107



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R IR AR ML

For the year ended March 31, 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HILFE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 27. BRETTE @)
2002 IDT International Option Scheme (continued) —EE_FERERRERETE (@
The movements of share options under the 2002 IDT International T _FEHBRREREEI T 2 BRERE
Option Scheme during the year ended March 31, 2011 and the EFE——F=-A=1+—HLEFEZEHEIKL
balances at March 31, 2011 are set out below: RZT——F=A=+—HZEE&EHBET :
Number of share options
BREHE
Lapsed/ Fair value  Share price
Exercise Granted forfeited atdate immediately
price Outstanding during during Outstanding of grant  before the
Participants Date of grant  Exercisable period pershare  at4.1.2010 the year theyear at3.31.2011 per share date of grant
R=2-%% R=B--% RELEH R
mA-H ER =A=t-A BRe B2
ga% RHAH il BRTEE  MAAE AR AN/ HATR  ATEE  HRRE
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT
Directors 11.30.2005 12.1.2006 — 11.30.2015 0.529 9,360,000 = = 9,360,000
£ 12.1.2010 12.1.2012 —11.30.2020 0222 — 6,000,000 — 6,000,000 0.087 0219
12.1.2010 12.1.2013 — 11.30.2020 0.222 — 6,000,000 — 6,000,000 0.102 0.219
Employees 11.28.2005 11.29.2006 — 11.28.2015 0.548 312,000 — - 312,000
E& 11.28.2005 11.29.2007 — 11.28.2015 0.548 3,198,000 — 650,000 2,548,000
11.28.2005 11.29.2008 — 11.28.2015 0.548 2,886,000 = 650,000 2,236,000
8.20.2007 8.20.2010 —8.19.2017 0315 1,250,000 — — 1,250,000
8.20.2007 8.20.2011 —8.19.2017 0.315 1,250,000 — — 1,250,000
3.3.2008 3.3.2010—3.2.2018 0.310 250,000 = 250,000 -
33.2008 332011 —32.2018 0310 250,000 - 250,000 —
1.15.2010 1.15.2011—1.14.2019 0.169 400,000 - 400,000 —
1.15.2010 1.15.2012 —1.14.2019 0.169 400,000 = 400,000 -
1.21.2010 1.21.2012 —1.20.2020 0.295 1,500,000 = = 1,500,000
1.21.2010 1.21.2013 — 1.20.2020 0.295 1,500,000 — — 1,500,000
3.24.2010 3.24.2012 —3.23.2020 0.275 1,500,000 = = 1,500,000
3242010 3242013 —3.23.2020 0275 1,500,000 — — 1,500,000
8.24.2010 8.24.2012 —8.23.2020 0.205 — 250,000 — 250,000 0.090 0.202
8.24.2010 8.24.2013 —8.23.2020 0.205 = 250,000 = 250,000 0.096 0.202
12.1.2010 12.1.2012 —11.30.2020 0222 — 21875000  1,375000 20,500,000 0.087 0219
12.1.2010 12.1.2013 — 11.30.2020 0.222 — 21,875,000 1,375,000 20,500,000 0.102 0.219

25,556,000 56,250,000 5,350,000 76,456,000

Exercisable at the

end of the year 17,006,000 15,706,000
RELR AT
Weighted average

exercise price HK$0.440  HK$0222  HK$0302  HK$0.289
gL BRE B0 BR022m EB0302T EK0.289TT
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 27. BREE @

2002 IDT International Option Scheme (continued) —EE_FERBIRRERESE (5
The movements of share options under the 2002 IDT International TR _FEHBRBRETS T 2 BRERE
Option Scheme during the year ended March 31, 2010 and the E-TZTFE-A=1+—RHLEFEZEHBERAR
balances at March 31, 2010 are set out below: RZE—TF=A=1T—HZHEHHRTT :
Number of share options
BREHE
Lapsed/ Fairvalue  Share price
Exercise Granted forfeited atdate immediately
price Outstanding during during Outstanding of grant  before the
Participants Date of grant  Exercisable period pershare  at4.1.2009 the year theyear at3.31.2010 per share date of grant
RZ2ENE RZ2-2% RELAH R
MA-H R ZA=t-H g =)-):1}ed
g8% RiLAH il BRTEE  HAAE  FARE  AN/EH WATE ~ ATEE  DERE
HKS HKS HK$
BB BET BB
Directors 11.30.2005 12.1.2006 — 11.30.2015 0.529 9,360,000 — — 9,360,000
£ 2.1.2008 2.1.2009 —1.31.2018 0.310 1,000,000 = 1,000,000 -
2.1.2008 2.1.2010—1.31.2018 0310 1,000,000 — 1,000,000 —
2.1.2008 2.1.2011—1.31.2018 0.310 1,000,000 — 1,000,000 —
Employees 11.28.2005 11.29.2006 — 11.28.2015 0.548 832,000 - 520,000 312,000
EE 11.28.2005 11.29.2007 — 11.28.2015 0.548 4,316,000 - 1,118,000 3,198,000
11.28.2005 11.29.2008 — 11.28.2015 0.548 3,484,000 = 598,000 2,886,000
8.20.2007 8.20.2009 —8.19.2017 0315 1,250,000 - — 1,250,000
8.20.2007 8.20.2010 —8.19.2017 0.315 1,250,000 - — 1,250,000
3.3.2008 3.3.2010—3.2.2018 0.310 250,000 = = 250,000
332008 332011 —32.2018 0310 250,000 - - 250,000
5.14.2008 5142010 —5.13.2018 0.315 250,000 - 250,000 —
5.14.2008 5142011 —5.13.2018 0.315 250,000 = 250,000 -
7.2.2008 72.2010—7.1.2018 0301 200,000 - 200,000 —
7.2.2008 722011 —7.1.2018 0.301 200,000 - 200,000 —
11.7.2008 11.7.2010 —11.6.2018 0.134 150,000 = 150,000 -
11.7.2008 11.7.2011 —11.6.2018 0.134 150,000 = 150,000 =
1.15.2009 1.15.2011—1.14.2019 0.169 400,000 - — 400,000
1.15.2009 1.15.2012 —1.14.2019 0.169 400,000 = = 400,000
1.21.2010 1.21.2012 —1.20.2020 0.295 = 1,500,000 = 1,500,000 0.131 0.280
1.21.2010 1.21.2013 — 1.20.2020 0.295 — 1,500,000 — 1,500,000 0.145 0.280
3.24.2010 3.24.2012 —3.23.2020 0.275 = 1,500,000 = 1,500,000 0.123 0.260
3242010 324.2013 —3.23.2020 0275 — 1,500,000 — 1,500,000 0.133 0.260

25,992,000 6,000,000 6,436,000 25,556,000

Exercisable at the

end of the year 18,992,000 17,006,000
RELRAIE
Weighted average

exercise price HK$0.462 HK$0.285 HK$0.384 HK$0.440
IETS7EE w0462 BE0285 AK0384T BE0440T
No share option was exercised during both years. R E BB T -

Annual Report 2011 3§ IDT International Limited R EFFERA 7 109



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R IR AR ML

For the year ended March 31, 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HILFE

27.

110

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2002 IDT International Option Scheme (continued)

The Company has used the Black-Scholes option pricing model (the
“Model”) to value the share options granted during the year. The
Model is one of the commonly used models to estimate the fair value
of the option. The value of an option varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions. Any change in the variables so adopted
may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

Details of the fair values of share options determined at the date of
grant using the Model with the inputs are as follows:

Weighted average share price niEFEIRE
Exercise price TE(E
Expected volatility SELENL
Expected life T8 B E 2 A

HEER A =X
TEHIRR B &K

Risk-free rate
Expected dividend yield

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company’s share price over the previous 3 to 4 years. The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management'’s best
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$1.0 million for the year

ended March 31, 2011 (2010: HK$0.2 million) in relation to share
options granted by the Company.

IDT International Limited B EEER A F

27.

2011
—E——F

HK$0.205 - HK$0.222
¥ 0.205 T - B 0.222 T
59.35% - 66.62%
3 years — 4 years

BT E
—EE_FEHERERETS (8
ADECIRAEHIETEER ((ZER ) HeE
R RIS THE - ZER BB
A EE AT EEGEER - BE 2 BEIRR
EFIBBRNSERY - FIRAEHNE S
8 BEEATEE GETESRHEAYE -

NZEAEEERENR L AR AFEENF
18 ARFTRANERT :

2010
—E-TF

HK$0.222
#0222 T

HK$0.275 — HK$0.295
7BH0.275 7T - B #0.295 7T
HK$0.275 — HK$0.295
7BH0.275 7T - B #0.295 7T
62.486% — 67.149%

3 years — 4 years

3F -4 3F -4
0.504% - 1.131% 1.076% — 1.584%
0.00% 0.00%

FBERETIAR R R RENBE=ENFHESL
BRIETRTE o WRA P EANRERFRHARRE
EERBEREIIERNSH  TRRHIETR
ERAEZMIEL R EMFT FAFE

AEERBE_T——F=A=+—HBIFER
AARRENEREEREE 1 0ABL(ZT—
TE  BK02BEBIL) ZBRX
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28. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank loans and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the management of the Group
considers the cost of capital and the risks associates with the capital,
and takes appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure.

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments

28.

29.

EXERER

AEBZEAERSERRASENZMEEE
BRHELE  AEERELLEBRRAERR
BRFR R BEARE R - ANEEH 2 g i = F AT

AEBZEARBREBERITEERARBERA
EiEER (B2 EBITRARER) -

AEBEREERERERER - (ERRBRZ
—HD AEBEREEBREAZKARERZ
R - e REUE S e AR B 2 AR -

MBETR
BT AER

3.31.2011 3.31.2010 4.1.2009
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BERETT B HETT

Financial assets WS EE

Loans and receivables ER &k ERFHIE (B

(including cash and cash equivalents) HeERERIFELER) 623.1 908.8 921.8
Held for trading investment RIEERIRE 5.7 9.9 —
Derivative financial assets PTHEYIEEE — 0.1 —
Available-for-sale financial assets A HEB I EE 0.4 — —
629.2 918.8 921.8

Financial liabilities B asE
Amortised cost B YR AN 470.9 478.4 456.0
Derivative financial liabilities TTEREaE 12.4 — 4.4
Annual Report 2011 3§ IDT International Limited BEEIFRER QA 111



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

BB R M

For the year ended March 31, 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HILFE

29.

112

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, held for trading investment, available-for-sale investments,
short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, bills payables, forward contract assets and liabilities and
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

The financial instruments are fundamental to the Group’s daily
operations. The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market
risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales and
purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group
also entered into foreign exchange forward contracts during the year.

The management monitors foreign currency exposures and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposures should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities including bank balances and
cash, trade and other receivables, and trade and other payables at the
reporting date are as follows:

usD VI
Renminbi AR
Euro B &
GBP i

29.

Liabilities
=0

Bt T B m)

BkEREEEERBUR

ANEE 2 £ Z 8T B8 1E R AR 5 R E At FE Uk
HIE - FEEERE - HEERE - RERT
TR RITEHRRIA S  BRHERRREAMERRK
B ENEE RPANEERBEUREE -
ZEVBITEFBERS BB ERE - TXE7
72 S0 TG R 2 B K a0 (A PR 5% 5 R fg
ZHE BEREEEEREREZERRE - ABRK
s T 75 280 B EGE & 18 e o

BHITARAEERTEEENER EREETRE

RERZ LM - PAREIR KB F B R REVE E
M - AEEMES 2 mSAR  AREER
BERBz AL L) -

WS AR

B @

AEBETHBRRETINEER - UBAEE

ARRINERR -
ZHIBH

REBEFAN IR & T IME

EREeEREXRRKLERE
BEREXER

2 55

K%@L‘M\\MEEZTMEF&T#?E%@%ﬁﬁ
RN - IR R A MR IR BB
M&Ef‘@f&‘ﬁ‘mlﬁ NiERZREENT

Assets

BE

49.3 38.4 306.1 643.0
27.0 21.2 76.7 17.8
2.4 2.0 14.8 9.1
0.1 0.1 3.2 17.8
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2010: 5%)
increase and decrease in the functional currency of the respective
group entities against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2010:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 5% (2010: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. The analysis
has excluded USD denominated monetary items as HKD, the functional
currency of the group entity holding these monetary items, is pegged
to USD. The directors consider that the currency risk in this regard is
minimal. A positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax loss
for the year ended March 31, 2011 and an increase in post-tax loss for
the year ended March 31, 2010 where functional currency strengthens
5% against the relevant foreign currency. For a 5% weakening of
functional currency of the respective group entities against the relevant
foreign currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
post-tax loss and the balances below would be negative.

29.

Bt T B )
MEEEEEEZREBER (®)

W5 E R (K)

B @ (&)

GERE A
TERAVEEASES S EHEEER 2 ER
B BRIINETTERBES% (ZE—FF :5%)
ZHHE 5% (ZF—FF :5%) RATEEE
ABFEARPREINE R PAEANGEHE - kK
REBEHINEE RS IR L B 2 7Tl o BUR
EATERERREAIINEEENEREE - IR
FRES% (ZF—ZF : 5%) MINEZ B FE
BREHNMER - ZOMAETNBREETEBEZEE
HE  REARKAUEEKEBRE ZEEERZY
RRERBIDES TN c EERRELFRZ
ERARBRTRE - THEBRRHNEES
HREBINETHES K AEHBE—_T——F=H
=t HLEFERRREEREMNR T —FF
ZA=T-HLEFEHRBREREN - H5F
MEBER2NEEE L EMINERESS &
SHRRBRERBSERER2FE M
BRI RAE -

Effect on post-tax result
for the year

HBEHEEEZY
2010
HK$'M
B RS
Renminbi AR 2.1 (0.1)
Euro &R 78 0.5 0.3
GBP £ 0.1 0.7
For the outstanding foreign exchange contracts, if the market bid RAREMIINEGAMS  WHHLHEEETRL

forward foreign exchange rate of USD against the relevant currencies
had been 5% higher/lower and other factors remain constant, post-
tax loss for the year would decrease/increase by HK$13.2 million (2010:
post-tax loss for the year would decrease/increase by HK$0.1 million).

In management’s opinion, the analysis is used for reference purpose
and is unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed primarily to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances, bank overdrafts and bank borrowings
(see notes 20 and 25 for details of these bank balances, bank overdrafts
and bank borrowings). The Group currently does not have policy on
hedging of interest rate risks. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposures and will consider hedging significant interest
rate risk should the need arise.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate arising from the
Group's Hong Kong borrowings at variable rates.

The management considers that the fair value interest rate risk is
insignificant as the Group had no fixed-rate deposit with original
maturity more than one year.

The management considers that the fair value interest rate risk on the
obligation under finance lease is insignificant as the amount involved is
insignificant.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank balances and bank
borrowings at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming these monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
(2010: 10 basis point) increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2010: 10 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-
tax loss for the year ended March 31, 2011 would decrease/increase
by HK$0.4 million (2010: post-tax loss decrease/increase by HK$0.3
million). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank balances and bank borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of

the inherent interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

IDT International Limited BEEIFRAR A 7
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29.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk

As at March 31, 2011, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure of
Group entities to perform their obligations in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivable regularly to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers spread across diverse industries and geographical areas.

The credit risk for bank deposits is considered minimal as such amounts
are placed in banks with high credit ratings.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically bank loans with
a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on agreed repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity analysis
for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted contractual net cash (inflows) and outflows
on derivative instruments that settle on a net basis. When the amount
payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by
reference to the projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield
curves existing at the end of the reporting period. The liquidity analysis
for the Group'’s derivative financial instruments are prepared based
on the contractual maturities as the management considers that the
contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing
of the cash flows of derivatives.
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—R - WBRIRITREE RN Z AT RE1E - ME M IEDT
EPBAEZEBMANAEREZERH - %K
BENERASRERE -

BN TRAMAEBETEMBTAZ RS IED
o ZRDRRIBRFBBENITET AR
BARWREFRORA) BORE IR o MK
BAEE - BIFTRESRIB2RNIREHREEE
BRI RSt R TRAF REE - A5E
REBANIHAETHITEMBTENREIED
- ERERRENENRBTTHRITEME TR
HAem BENEZRE -
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

29.

BT A um

Mg EEEE B ERBGR (3)

REBESEE (8
B E 2 R =@ 2%

Weighted
average  Ondemand Total Carrying
effective or within 3 months undiscounted amount at
interest rate 3 months to 1 year 1-5years cash flows 3.31.201
R=2--%
TS EZXg Rz ¥R =A=1-H
ERAI= AR - -E1f ReRELH AR
% HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
AEEER AEEER AEEER AEEER AEEER
2011 -g—-f
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTERBEE
Trade and other payables JERTER T R E A e 7R - 158.9 - — 158.9 158.9
Bills payable e - 0.1 — — 0.1 0.1
Bank overdrafts — variable rate RITEY — FHF= 0.0 5.8 - - 58 58
Bank loans — variable rate BITER — FEH % 173 305.9 - - 305.9 305.9
Obligations under finance leases BBRNES 3.25 0.1 0.1 0.1 03 0.2
470.8 0.1 0.1 4.0 470.9
Derivative settled net REBEELEIHTATIR
Foreign currency forward contracts INERBA L - 10.2 22 124 124
Weighted
average  Ondemand Total Carrying
effective or within 3 months undiscounted amount at
interest rate 3 months to 1 year 1-5years cash flows 3.31.2010
RZ2-2%
METH EERT, S:)ES A¥E ZA=t-A
ERTI= =fiAR - -E1F ReREEE RAE
% HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
ABEET  A%EEnr  AYEER  BMEER  ABEER
2010 —E-%%
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTERBEE
Trade and other payables R R R E bR — 884 72 0.1 95.7 95.7
Bills payable e — 08 - - 08 08
Bank overdrafts — variable rate RITEX — FBFIE 337 6.8 = = 6.8 6.7
Bank loans — variable rate BITER — FEA % 172 3738 - - 3738 3738
Obligations under finance leases BEROES 384 06 08 0.1 15 14
470.4 8.0 0.2 4786 4784

IDT International Limited B EEER A F
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
as follows:

o the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices.

3 the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

° the fair values of derivative instruments are calculated using
discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable forward rates
for the remaining duration of the instruments.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximates to their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are
measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into
Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

—  Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets or
liabilities.

—  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

—  Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation

techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Annual Report 2011 &
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position (continued)

29. I T A m
AN FEE )
ERAMBRRERD Y AP EETE (H)

3.31.2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— EZR F=H #azE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BERETT AKAEErT A¥EET BYEBEET
Financial liabilities MBaE
Forward contract liabilities RHPEHNEE — 12.4 — 124
3.31.2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— EZR B=R #zE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BERETT AKAErT A¥EERT BYBEET
Financial assets HKEE
Held for trading (note 19) HEEE (FizE19)
— listed equity security — LT ZRAES 9.9 — — 9.9
Forward contract assets REANEE = 0.1 = 0.1
Total Rk 9.9 0.1 — 10.0

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in current year.

118 IDT International Limited B EEER A F
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30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 30.

31.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed to make
the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases which fall due as follows:

REBENRZH
RBEMEER  ARBRETIHHZCEH
DA FBRERLN FASBMT -

2010
HK$'M
ARSI

Office equipment and motor vehicles MAERBERSE
Within one year —EZR 0.7 0.7
In the second to fifth year inclusive “ERFHN(BEEERSF) 0.5 0.8
1.2 1.5

Rented premises HEWE

Within one year —FEZR 22.2 19.9
In the second to fifth year inclusive —ERERN(BIEEEME) 27.8 28.6
After five years hF#E 5.3 6.8
55.3 55.3

Operating leases relate to office equipment, motor vehicles and rented
premises with lease terms of between 2 to 10 years. The Group does
not have an option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the

lease period.

Certain retail outlets include payment obligations with rentals varied
with gross revenue. The additional rental payable (contingent rents) is
determined generally by applying pre-determined percentages to future
expected sales less the basic rentals of the respective leases.

REMODENBAZRE  SEREEYEL
B HOBMAME+F - AEERBOHmE
EREBEZHEEE -

ETEEREE 2 NFEET RESERAKRAE
B FEMNENES (RAEE) —ARIERAARKEH
SR BT B DL MRERNHONEATEKE

JE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. BEAREIE
2010
HK$'M
BEBET
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of ~ HREEEME « HENREZ
property, plant and equipment BARALZ
— contracted for but not provided in the — BETAVE MR E B R
consolidated financial statements TEL B 0.5 0.5
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32.

33.

120

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 32. EIKRESTE

The Group principally operates defined contribution retirement schemes AEEFTZELRLREERES (BREES)RIE
for all qualifying employees, including directors. The assets of the BHFGEKRE S - ZetEl 2 EEEANER 2
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under BENFAFER  WHEEFEANRESTEAEE -

the control of independent trustees.

The retirement scheme cost represents contributions payable to the RINMRIERTE| & B A S BB B 2GR 7187
funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. ZHEREGRI ZHR  GEEENESEH
Where there are employees who leave the schemes prior to vesting HERATEN R HZ AT &l - BIHOR M 2 B = HEE A
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are LUBE AN E @ B 18 FE S 2 3EE -

reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF” AEBARTELBAEREERLRFIERATES
Scheme) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. All qualifying srEl((aEestEll) - FTAEEEKRERHEAZM
employees are required to participate in the MPF Scheme. Mandatory cRiESETEl - Hoa bl B AR IRa B st EliR Mt o

benefits are being provided under the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are members of ARBFEMBEARZEERTEBMERE 2 H
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC REERKREEIKE - KARZHRMBEA
government. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute AIAMRKREERETIEZ —FTEDENUX
a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme RESEE - AEBERBRARREAE2EEGEE
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to RARIEET IV PTE K o

the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES 33. BEALRS
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEBEAESME
The remuneration of key management during the year was as follows: RERBZEEBEERAEBMESHOT :
2010
HK$'M
BEBET
Short-term benefits SEGRER] 13.4 13.2
Post-employment benefits BEBR 12 1B T 0.3 0.4
13.7 13.6
The remuneration of key management is determined by the FEEBABZMeBFMEESRANALTZ

remuneration committee having regard to the performance of KBRS K FERE -
individuals and market trends.
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34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

At March 31, 2011, the Company’s principal subsidiaries, are all
indirectly wholly owned by the Company except Huger Electronics
GmbH which is 83% indirectly owned by the Company. At March 31,
2010, those subsidiaries within the LCD consumer electronic products
business division are 72% indirectly owned by the Company. Details of
the Company'’s principal subsidiaries at March 31, 2011 and 2010 are

as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

LCD consumer electronic products business

RERETETHEEREY
IDT Holdings (Singapore) Limited *

Exact-Time Company Limited

EENBEXBRAR

Cheer Win Electronics (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.

(Note 2)
BREF(RINERAR (FizE2)

Huger Electronics GmbH

IDT Technology Limited
EREHABRAA
Rich Win Electronics Limited

NMEEXERA

=1}

2011

—g--F
Nominal value
of issued
ordinary share/
registered capital
BEf
EERGEE/
AMEE

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

MR,/
R

Singapore $$35,122,525
EipiE;d IR

35,122,525
Hong Kong HK$2
BB BT
PRC US$1,700,980
HE 1,700,980 = 7t
Germany DM3,500,000
=H 3,500,000 5%
Hong Kong HK$2
BR BT
Hong Kong HK$2
BB BT

* The Company is delisted in Singapore during February 2011.

Annual Report 2011 &

34. TEWBELF
AAREEEWNB R AAARHEE LR
A - B Huger Electronics GmbH i AR RIE#H A
83% 5 e RZE—TF =B =+—HARBIHEE
HEZRREENE FHEEREBETHAA
2% MN-E——FR/R-_T-—FF=F=1+—8

Z BT
2010
—2-2%
Nominal value
Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary share/
establishment registered capital  Principal activities
BRfT
FRERL/ LERGBEE/
Bt afER  FEEK
Singapore $$35,122,525  Investment holding
I gl REARR
35,122,525
Hong Kong HK$2  Manufacture of consumer electronic
products and plastic parts and
provision of surface mount
technology assembly services
B BT BEETHBERRZEBHG
RRHERER A RIRE
PRC US$420,000  Manufacture and sales of consumer
electronic products
ki 420000XT BRERHEETEEEM
Germany DM3,500,000  Marketing and distribution of
(Notes 1 &3) consumer electronic products
= 350000055% HERHSHEFHEER
GEANE)
Hong Kong HK$2  Trading of consumer electronic
products
BB BT BHEPHEEM
Hong Kong HK$2  Trading of consumer electronic
products
&R BT KREETHBER
& E-Z——%"f  ARAIBENIMKHRE LS
Hofz o
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34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

122

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

Digital media products business
URREREREH

King Win Electronics Limited
EHEFERARA

IDT Data System Limited
BRETNEBRAT

IDT Sonicvision Limited

BRI ENRBRAA
Electronic learning products business
ETHEEmEY

Ming Win Electronics Limited
HREXBRAA

IDT Electronic Products Limited

BRETIEBRAT

2011

—g—-F
Nominal value
of issued
ordinary share/
registered capital
BB
LERNOER/
SfER

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

MR,/
R

Hong Kong HK$20
BE BE20T
Hong Kong HK$2
B B2
Hong Kong HK$100
BE 1007
Hong Kong HK$2
B B2
Hong Kong HK$2
BE BT

IDT International Limited BEEIFRAR A 7

34. TEWE AT @)

2010
—2-%F

Nominal value

Place of of issued

incorporation/  ordinary share/
establishment registered capital ~ Principal activities
BRfT

EMAL/ ZERAEE/

B3 TfER  FEEH

Hong Kong HK$20  Manufacture of consumer electronic
products

B BE0T HESTHEER

Hong Kong HK$2  Trading of consumer electronic
products

&R BT BHEETHBER

Hong Kong HK$100  Trading of consumer electronic
products

36 BEI0T  KHETHEER

Hong Kong HK$2  Manufacture of consumer electronic
products

&R B¥IT  REETHEER

Hong Kong HK$2  Trading of consumer electronic
products

BB BT BHEETHEED
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34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

Place of

incorporation/
establishment

MR,/
R

2011
—g—-F

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary share/
registered capital

BRT
EERHAR/
EMEx

34. TEME QT @)

Telecommunication products business
ENEREK
Auto System Technology Limited

AERHAR A

Integrated Display Technology

Telecommunications (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

(Note 2)
BREA(RINERAR (FE2)

Super Win Electronics Limited
ABEXBRAA

IDT Communication Technology Limited
ER BB RARAR

Tekcom Industries Limited

=2 (BH) IXERAF

Annual Report 2011 &

Hong Kong HK$20
BE B0
PRC RMB11,000,000
i ARH

11,000,000 7o
Hong Kong HK$2
Y BET
Hong Kong HK$2
BE BT
Hong Kong HK$10,000
] 7##10,000 T

2010
2-2F
Nominal value
Place of of issued
incorporation/  ordinary share/
establishment registered capital ~ Principal activities
BRfT
ERAL/ ZERAEE/
B TZfER  FEEH
Hong Kong HK$20  Manufacture of consumer electronic
products
Bh BE0T HESTHEER
PRC RMB11,000,000  Manufacture and sales of
telecommunication products
HE ARE  HEREESHER
11,000,0007C
Hong Kong HK$2  Manufacture of telecommunication
products
it A¥2T  REEAER
Hong Kong HK$2  Trading of telecommunication
products
BE BT KEENEM
Hong Kong HK$10,000  Trading of telecommunication
products
Bk BE10000 EHEHER
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34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. TEMER T @

2011 2010
—E—-% —E-%F
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of WIS Place of of issued
T EH B ASGTGERTAEIEA  incorporation/  ordinary share/
Name of subsidiary CHENHMENEERHEERERIEIN  establishment  registered capital — Principal activities
B&fT BRfT
EMARL/ LERGAE/ FELEVY ZERAEE/
WEARERE B3 3 26 aftEAs Wehsk aftER  FEEH
Sales and distribution business
HERDEEHE
Oregon Scientific Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Hong Kong HK$2  Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
B (EX)FRAR BE B AR BT RERSHEEFPHEEM
Oregon Scientific Australia Pty Limited Australia A$6,010,000  Australia A$6,010,000  Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
M 6,010,000 M 601000087 HERHHEFHEER
Oregon Scientific Brasil Ltda Brazil BRL11,332,974  Brazil BRL11,332,974  Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
B 1M3RIUEEE EA 1339485/ EEROHETHEER
Oregon Scientific (Deutschland) GmbH Germany DM2,550,000  Germany DM2,550,000  Marketing and distribution consumer
electronic products
e 2,550,00055% f2E 255000055% HERHHETHEEM
Oregon Scientific France S.AR.L. France EUR3,500,000  France EUR3,500,000  Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
Pz 35000008 EE 35000000 HERIHEFHEEM
Oregon Scientific Global Distribution Limited Hong Kong HKS2  Hong Kong HK$2  Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
BRATRKERAR BE B AR BT HRERDHETHEER
Oregon Scientific Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000  Hong Kong HK$500,000  Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
BASREARAR i B500000% B BH500000T  RERIEEFEEEM

IDT International Limited BEEIFRAR A 7

Annual Report 2011 3R



34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

34. TEME QT @)

2011 2010
2% —E-ZF
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of of issued  JEICK of issued
TSI ENBASGTGERTAEIEA  incorporation/  ordinary share/
Name of subsidiary CHENENENENERHEERERIEIN  establishment  registered capital — Principal activities
B&f BRfT
ERRL/ LERGEE/ JELEVY ZERAEE/
WEARERE B3 3 B aftEas Wests TZfER  FEEH
Sales and distribution business (continued)
HERDEEHE (B)
Oregon Scientific bérica, S.A. Spain EUR300,000  Spain EUR300,000  Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
AT 300,0008 AT 300,000EE HEERIEEFEEEM
Oregon Scientific Italia S.p.A. Italy EUR2,156,000  Italy EUR2,156,000  Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
EXH 2,156,000 EAF 2,156 000E% HERHHETHEED
Oregon Scientific South East Asia Pte. Limited ~ Singapore $$100,000  Singapore $$100,000  Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
s FHEE  FK Rl RERHBETHEEER
100,000 7T 100,000 7T
Oregon Scientific (U.K.) Limited United Kingdom  GBP2,400,002  United Kingdom GBP2,400,002  Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
gz 2,400,002 %8  HM 2400002#8  HERHHETHEED
Oregon Scientific, Inc. United States of ~ US$2,060,000 ~ United States of US$2,060,000  Marketing and distribution of
America America consumer electronic products
%6 2,060,000%7 X 2,060000X  HERIHEFHEEM
Oregon Scientific Enterprise (Shanghai) PRC US$2,440,000  PRC US$2,440,000  Marketing and distribution of
Company Limited (Note 2) consumer electronic products
BAEzE5 (L8 BRAR (E2) HE 2,440000%7% A 2440000%7T  HERHHETHEEM
Oregon Scientific Trading (Beijing) PRC US$900,000  PRC US$900,000  Marketing and distribution of
Company Limited (Note 2) consumer electronic products
BADEE (R AR AR (ME2) HE 900,000%7  HE 900,000XT RERIEEFEEEM
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34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

126

34. TEWE AT @)

2011 2010
—E—-% —E-2F
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of WIS Place of of issued
TG EHBAGTGERTAEIEA  incorporation/  ordinary share/
Name of subsidiary CHENHNENENERHEERERIEIN  establishment  registered capital — Principal activities
BE BRfT
EMARL/ LERGAE/ FELEVY ZERAEE/
WEARERE B3 3 2 aftEAs Wehsk TfER  FEEH
Sales and distribution business (continued)
HERDHEHE (B)
BNTEREADESERAR (Mi2) PRC HK$2,000,000 — —  Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
HE 2,000,000 7T RERAHETHEER
IDT (Japan) Limited Japan JPY30,000,000  Japan JPY30,000,000  Trading of consumer electronic
products
RS 30,000000HE HBA 30,000,000 B REETHEER
IPM Concepts Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Hong Kong HK$2  Trading of consumer electronic
products
BE B BA BT  BHESFEBED
Corporate
CIES
Integrated Display Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$6,000,000  Hong Kong HK$6,000,000  Provision of group administrative
services
BRMBARAH i #%6,000000 AA #B%6,0000007c  REEETHRS
IDT Electronic Technology (Shenzhen) PRC USD6,300,000  PRC USD6,300,000  Provision of group research and
Company Limited (Note 2) development services
BRETHR(RINBRAR (Wi2) HE 6,300,000%7T  HE 6,300,000%T  REKEFTRAERS
IDT Technology Development (Shenzhen) PRC US$420,000  PRC US$420,000  Provision of group research and
Company Limited (Note 2) development services
BRMBHE (RN BRAR (Wi2) HE 420000%57 420000KT  REEEFHERFERS
Note 1:  Huger Electronics GmbH has paid-up surplus of DM1,800,000 in MizE1: B B # 17 B 43,500,000 3 #h - Huger
addition to the issued share capital of DM3,500,000. Electronics GmbH # & % A & # 1,800,000 55
;‘E o
Note 2:  These are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC. MizE2 : RPBRKZZEBINERE -
Note 3:  Huger Electronic GmbH has carried out a capital reduction of its issued MisE3 :  Huger Electronic GmbHR = Z T A\ & M A

share capital from DM3,500,000 to Euro25,000 on April 30, 2008.

IDT International Limited BEEIFRAR A 7

=T B#ETRAER - B EBBETRAH
3,500,000 f5 52 #ll & % 25,000 B 78 °

Annual Report 2011 3R



34.

35.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Except for Exact-Time Company Limited, King Win Electronics Limited,
Ming Win Electronics Limited and Super Win Electronics Limited which
operate in the PRC and the investment holding companies which have
no definite place of operation, all of the above subsidiaries operate
principally in their respective place of incorporation/establishment.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end
of the reporting period, or at any time during the year.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Financial information of the Company at the end of the reporting
period includes:

34.

35.

FEMEB QT @)

BESFASLERAT SRBELERAT -
FRELERATRAATLERATETRHL
B RITEERATEEETQLEN - tit
ST BHBATIYEEEE M B2

fm -

ERRIINER SR AU ASEEENEEER
ERYEMBEAR -ERERRFMATIBAEA
ME ARz EREBRILE

REGBRAEFEASEN - SHEATNEE
MR BHES -
BRARAZHBESR

NBEPRZTE A 2BERARRZHMBERE
ECTE

2010
HK$'M
B HETT

ASSETS BE
Investments in subsidiaries M B A FRE 204.8 204.8
Other receivables H b pE Y FRIE 0.2 0.1
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG ] 342.6 346.7
Bank balances and cash IRITEHREIR S 0.1 0.1
547.7 551.7

LIABILITIES =F=
Other payables Hfth fE 3018 2.6 2.3
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B A = ZE 273.2 275.3
275.8 277.6
NET ASSETS EEZRE 271.9 2741

CAPITAL AND RESERVES B

Share capital &N 250.2 250.2
Reserves s 21.7 23.9
TOTAL EQUITY R 271.9 2741
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OFFICES AND FACILITIES

MEENRE

Hong Kong Headquarters
IDT International Limited
Integrated Display Technology Limited
Block C, 9/F., Kaiser Estate,
41 Man Yue Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Tel: 852 2764 7873

Fax: 852 2765 6620

Email: idthk@idthk.com
Website: www.idthk.com

PRC manufacturing facilities
IDT R&D Centre

Chentian Industrial Estate,
Xixiang, Bao An,

Shenzhen, PRC

Tel: 86 755 2970 1188

Fax: 86 755 2970 9025

EUROPE

Oregon Scientific Italia S.p.A.
Centro Direzionale Colleoni, Palazzo
Taurus 2, Viale Colleoni, 3

20864 Agrate Brianza (MB), Italy
Tel: 39 039 656 181

Fax: 39 039 643 3111

Email: info@oregonscientific.it
Website: www.oregonscientific.it

Oregon Scientific Iberica, S.A.
C/Calendula, 95 Edificio O. Miniparc Il
La Moraleja, 28109 Alcobendas,
Madrid, Spain

Tel: 34 91 650 3795

Fax: 34 91 650 3856

Email: sales@oregonscientific.es
Website: www.oregonscientific.es

Oregon Scientific (U.K.) Limited
Unit 1, The Switchback,

Gardner Road, Maidenhead,
Berkshire SL6 7RJ, UK

Tel: 44 1 628 580 154

Fax: 44 1 628 634 981

Email: enquiries@oregonuk.com
Website: www.oregonscientific.co.uk

Oregon Scientific France S.A.R.L.
3 Rue Jesse Owens,

93210 La Plaine,

Saint Denis, France

Tel: 33 1 5593 2679

Fax: 33 1 5593 2699

Email: info@oregonscientific.fr
Website: www.oregonscientific.fr

Oregon Scientific (Deutschland) GmbH
Huger Electronics GmbH

SiemensstraBe 3,

63263 Neu-Isenburg,

Germany

Tel: 49 6102 7985 388

Fax: 49 6102 7985 389

Email: info@oregonscientific.de

Website: www.oregonscientific.de

NORTH AMERICA

Oregon Scientific, Inc.
Portland Office

19861 SW 95th Avenue,
Tualatin, Oregon 97062, USA
Tel: 1 503 783 5100

Fax: 1 503 691 6208

Email: info@oscientific.com
Website: us.oregonscientific.com

Oregon Scientific, Inc.
Massachusetts Office

12 Gill Street, Suite 1050,
Woburn, MA 01801, USA

Tel: 1 508 475 0030

Fax: 1 508 519 0078

Email: info@oscientific.com
Website: us.oregonscientific.com

LATIN AMERICA

Oregon Scientific Brasil Limitada
Av. Ibirapuera, 2.907-

sl. 1614/1615/1616,

Bourbon Convention - Ed.
Commercial State - Moema,

Sao Paulo-SP CEP 04029-200,
Brazil

Tel: 55 11 5091 6720

Fax: 55 11 5091 6711

Email: osb@oregonscientific.com.br
Website: www.oregonscientific.com.br

ASIA PACIFIC

Oregon Scientific Global Distribution

Limited

Oregon Scientific Hong Kong Limited

Block C, 9/F., Kaiser Estate,

41 Man Yue Street,

Hunghom, Kowloon,Hong Kong

Tel: 852 2303 1889

Fax: 852 2765 7435

Email: info@oregonscientific.com

Website: www.oregonscientific.com.hk
www.oregonscientific.com
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Oregon Scientific Enterprise (Shanghai)
Limited

(Officially known as BXPHZ2 & 5 (_£/§)
BRAR])

18F, Harbour Ring Huangpu Centre,

No. 98 Liu He Road,

Shanghai 200001, PRC

Tel: 86 21 6350 7072

Fax: 86 21 6350 7074

Email: os-shanghai@oregonscientific.com
Website: www.oregonscientific.com.cn

Oregon Scientific Trading (Beijing) Co., Ltd
(Officially known as BXpa a5 & 5 (L R)
ERRAR)

Room 1902 Building 10, Jianwai SOHO,
39 East 3rd-Ring Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing 100022, PRC

Tel: 86 10 5869 9065

Fax: 86 10 5869 9095

Email: os-beijing@oregonscientific.com
Website: www.oregonscientific.com.cn

Oregon Scientific Australia Pty Limited
The Coach House,

85 George Street,

Parramatta, NSW 2150

Australia

Tel: 61 2 8297 4700

Fax: 61 2 9262 2700

Email: info@oregonscientific.com.au
Website: www.oregonscientific.com.au

Oregon Scientific (Japan) Limited
IDT (Japan) Limited

8/F., UM Building, 1-14-5,
Higashi-Ueno,

Taito-ku, Tokyo 110-0015, Japan
Tel: 81 3 3837 3791

Fax: 81 3 3837 3980

Email: general@idtj.co.jp

Website: www.oregonscientific.com
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